
 

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green 
 
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB 
 
www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499 
 

 
 
 
 

 Please reply to:  
 Contact: Christeen Abee 
 Service: Committee Services 
 Direct Line: 01784 446224 
 E-mail: c.abee@spelthorne.gov.uk 
 Date: 08 April 2024 

 
 

Notice of meeting 
 
 

Extraordinary Environment and Sustainability Committee 
 
 
Date: 
 

Tuesday, 16 April 2024 

Time: 
 

7.00 pm 

Place: 
 

Council Chamber, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames TW18 
1XB 

 
To the members of the Environment and Sustainability Committee 
 
Councillors: 
 
M. Beecher (Chair) 
K.M. Grant (Vice-Chair) 
M.M. Attewell 
S.N. Beatty 
J.R. Boughtflower 
T. Burrell 
 

J.P. Caplin 
S.M. Doran 
N. Islam 
M.J. Lee 
L. E. Nichols 
K.E. Rutherford 
 

J.R. Sexton 
J.A. Turner 
H.R.D. Williams 
P.N. Woodward 
 

 
Substitute Members: Councillors C. Bateson, H.S. Boparai, J. Button, A. Gale, 

R.V. Geach, D.L. Geraci, K. Howkins and O. Rybinski 
 
Councillors are reminded that the Gifts and Hospitality Declaration book will be available 
outside the meeting room for you to record any gifts or hospitality offered to you since the last 
Committee meeting. 

http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk


 

 

Agenda 
 
 Page nos. 
 
1.   Apologies and Substitutes 

 
 

 To receive any apologies for absence and notification of substitutions. 
 

 

2.   Disclosures of Interest 
 

 

 To receive any disclosures of interest from councillors in accordance 
with the Council’s Code of Conduct for members. 
 

 

3.   Draft Air Quality Action Plan 
 

3 - 86 

 Committee is asked to consider: 
 
1.Approval of the progression of the draft Air Quality Action Plan to 
submission to Defra for review  
 
2.Approval of the progression of the draft Air Quality Action Plan to 
undergo public consultation.  
 

 

 
 



  

 
 

Environment and Sustainability Committee   

 

16th April 2024  

 

1. Summary of the report 

What is the situation Why we want to do something 

• As part of Spelthorne Borough 

Council’s statutory local air quality 

management duties Defra require 

the Council to submit a draft Air 

• This is a statutory requirement as 

advised by Defra. 

• Spelthorne Borough Council 

recognise the health impacts of poor 

Title Spelthorne Air Quality Action Plan 

Purpose of the report To make a Key Decision 

Report Author Dr Claire Lucas, Principal Pollution Control Officer 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards 

Exempt No     

Exemption Reason Not applicable 

Corporate Priority Environment 

Recommendations 

 

Committee is asked to: 

 

1. Approve the progression of the draft Air Quality Action 
Plan to submission to Defra for review. 
 

2. Approve the progression of the draft Air Quality Action 
Plan to undergo Public Consultation.  

 

Reason for 
Recommendation 

Local air quality management is a statutory process introduced by  

the Environment Act 1985 (Part IV), which places a legal duty on  

all local authorities to regularly review both the current and future  

air quality within their areas. 

 

Defra have advised Spelthorne Borough Council that a draft Air 
Quality Action Plan must be submitted to Defra for comment by 
the 1st May 2024 and that the draft AQAP must progress to public 
consultation.  

 

To ensure that the Council complies with statutory obligations. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

Quality Action Plan giving actions 

that the Council and other 

stakeholders in Local Air Quality 

will take over 5 years to safeguard 

air quality within the Spelthorne 

Air Quality Management Area.  

air quality and are committed to 

working to safeguard improvements 

in local air quality. 

• Spelthorne Borough Council 

recognises the Climate Change 

Emergency and the need to reduce 

greenhouse gas emissions which has 

co-benefits for local air quality.  

This is what we want to do about it These are the next steps 

• A draft Air Quality Action Plan has 

been written by specialist 

consultants following engagement 

with stakeholders including the 

Transport Authorities, National 

Highways and Surrey County 

Council.  

• The draft Air Quality Action Plan 

needs to progress to Public 

Consultation to capture the views 

of Spelthorne residents and 

businesses as well as to 

neighbouring authorities. 

• Alongside the Public Consultation 

process Defra’s air quality 

specialist will review the draft Air 

Quality Action Plan and provide 

feedback.  

• To achieve Committee approval for 

the draft Air Quality Action Plan to 

progress to Public Consultation and 

to review by Defra.  

• A Public Consultation exercise will 

run in the Councils digital platform in 

line with Defra guidance for at least 1 

month.  

• Neighbouring Local Authorities will 

be consulted on the draft Air Quality 

Action Plan alongside the Public 

Consultation exercise.  

• Comments from Defra, Neighbouring 

Authorities and the responses to the 

Public Consultation will be 

considered in a finalised Air Quality 

Action Plan that will require adoption 

at Committee later this year.  

 

 

2. Key issues 

2.1 An Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) provides the mechanism by which local 
authorities, in collaboration with national agencies and others, will state their 
intentions for working towards the air quality objectives through the use of the 
powers they have available. 

2.2 Spelthorne has experienced widespread improvement in air quality measured 
against the annual mean National Air Quality Objective for nitrogen dioxide 
that is primarily attributable to pollutant emissions from traffic since the 
Boroughs Air Quality Action Plan was published in 2005. 

2.3 The 2005 AQAP is no longer considered to be valid as many of the specified 
actions have been completed, and there have been improvements to local air 
quality since the original plan was established. Annual updates on the 
Councils and stakeholder actions have been made in the Annual Status 
Report to Defra.  

Page 4



 
 

2.4 Defra wrote to the Council on the 31st August 2023 specifying that the Air 
Quality Action Plan must be updated by May 2024, or the Council will receive 
a Ministerial Letter. Defra have written to Councils that have not renewed their 
AQAPs within the last 5 years. 

2.5 In January 2024 Spelthorne’s Environment and Sustainability Committee 
determined to reduce the coverage of the Air Quality Management Area that 
had been declared for historic exceedance of the statutory air quality 
objectives for nitrogen dioxide air pollution in reflection of the improvements 
demonstrated in air quality monitoring data.  

2.6 The motion passed by the Council on 14/10/21 to advocate for the WHO 
Global Air Quality Guidelines (WHO AQG’s), is noted. Defra considers that 
working towards the WHO AQG’s helps to safeguard local air quality and the 
motion has been included amongst the actions of the Council within the 
AQAP, however the AQAP must consider compliance in line with Defra 
guidance which considers the statutory objectives set out in the Air Quality 
Standards Regulations 2010 and not the WHO AQG’s. 

3. Options analysis and proposal 

3.1 The draft AQAP presents actions for Spelthorne Borough Council and 
stakeholders such as Heathrow Airport Ltd, National Highways, and Surrey 
County Council. These are actions to be pursued from 2024 to 2028 subject 
to resources and funding. 

3.2 The action measures are included based on scale of the air quality issues 
identified, which are that Spelthorne’s air quality monitoring datasets for the 
past 3 years are showing very limited exceedance at one location in the most 
recently available dataset with no relevant exposure.  

3.3 The AQAP secures the continuation of comprehensive air quality monitoring, 
and that Spelthorne contribute as a member of the Surrey Air Alliance with 
other Surrey Districts and Boroughs to a Surrey wide air quality dispersion 
modelling exercise within the lifecycle of the plan. 

3.4 Further safeguards are provided by the Local Air Quality Management 
process in that the contents of the AQAP are reviewed each year within the 
Local Air Quality Management Annual Status Reporting process to Defra. If 
there is evidence of deterioration in air quality further measures can be 
introduced.  

3.5 The draft AQAP is presented in Appendix A, some key SBC measures from 
the draft AQAP include: 

 Undertaking the statutory process required to increase the cover of the 
boroughs Smoke Control Areas to give borough wide coverage.  

 Supporting the Spelthorne in the Zone campaign for inclusion of 
Spelthorne in transport Zone 6.  

 Closer working on synergies in policy and projects securing air quality 
improvement and reductions in greenhouse gas emissions. For 
example, through the Climate Change Working Group.  

 To continue to promote and encourage active travel as an alternative 
to vehicle use.  

Page 5



 
 

 To continue to provide an air quality alert service that residents who 
are vulnerable to episodes of poor air quality can sign up to.  

 To continue to fund and provide comprehensive air quality monitoring 
in the borough.  

 To continue collaboration with Heathrow Airport Ltd to reduce 
emissions arising from the operation of Heathrow Airport. 

 To continue to work with the Surrey Air Alliance including neighbouring 
boroughs, Surrey County Council and National Highways to bring 
about air quality improvements across Surrey. Public Health, Safer 
Travel and the Transport Planning teams from Surrey County Council 
and Surrey Heartlands NHS Trust all participate in the Surrey Air 
Alliance.  

 To work on supplementary planning guidance for applicants on air 
quality with Development Planning. 

 

3.6 Members should note that when the plan is adopted, the Council will be 
committing to a number of measures, some of which will require funding via 
Service Plans and Growth Bids.  

3.7 The Committee is asked to make a decision as follows: 

3.8 Option 1: To recommend that the draft AQAP commences to Public 
Consultation and is submitted to Defra for review.  

3.9 Option 2: To not recommend that the draft AQAP commences to Public 
Consultation and is submitted to Defra for review.  

3.10 Option 2 is not recommended as it will mean the Council will not meet the 
May deadline set by Defra. Failure to meet the deadline imposed by Defra will 
result in the Council receiving a Ministerial Section 85 direction letter to the 
Chief Executive specifying action.  

3.11 Due to the timescales imposed by Defra for the submission of a draft AQAP 
no option for amending the draft AQAP is presented. The draft AQAP and the 
accompanying Equalities and Diversity Impacts Assessment have been 
formulated by professional technical experts in the field of air quality 
management and equalities and diversity impacts assessment, in consultation 
with stakeholders in Local Air Quality Management. The draft AQAP has been 
written in line with a template and guidance produced by Defra.  Members 
were consulted via a dedicated Members Briefing. Amendments to the AQAP 
will be made following the public consultation exercise, and taking account of 
feedback from Defra before the AQAP progresses to Committee for adoption.  

 

4. Financial management comments 

4.1 Budget is already allocated for the services of a specialist consultant who has 
formulated the updated Air Quality Action Plan. 

4.2 It is possible that further professional services may be required to complete 
the plan after the Public Consultation stage, this has been budgeted for in the 
2024/25 financial year.  

Page 6



 
 

4.3 The funding of individual actions within the plan will vary in accordance with 
which organisation is responsible for the action, and whether the action can 
be delivered with existing resources or requires additional funding.  

4.4 Where additional funding may be required for actions within the plan routes to 
funding include grant applications to the Defra Air Quality Fund, corporate 
social responsibility funding that may be available to the Council, Section 106 
funding if appropriate, Green Initiatives bids and other funds related to 
emissions reduction, growth bids, actions as part of development schemes, 
for example the River Thame Scheme is expected to secure active travel 
infrastructure, and revenue generated by services such as parking where 
appropriate, for example from EV charging stations if established in Council 
owned car parks.  

5. Risk management comments  

5.1 Environmental Health’s provision of the Council’s statutory air quality 
management duties was subject to an internal audit in winter 2022. The 
ongoing work on the updated Air Quality Action Plan was noted. Internal 
Audit’s assurance opinion is ‘Reasonable Assurance’ (there is a generally 
sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. Some 
issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were identified which may 
put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited). 

5.2 Risks to the delivery of the AQAP are as follows: 

5.3 Risk of inadequate consultation, this risk has been mitigated by following 
guidance from Defra and by utilising the services of a specialist consultant 
who will help deliver the consultation process. 

5.4 Resource risk, this work has already been delayed by pressure on staff 
resources. Upcoming resource risks are consultations in relation to potential 
development and airspace change at Heathrow Airport, a major development 
on historic landfill, that is currently undergoing land contamination validation 
which generates extensive technical submissions that the Pollution Control 
Officers must review, and consultation for the River Thames Scheme 
Development Consent Order to which Environmental Health are a statutory 
consultee. To help mitigate the risk of competing resource demands a 
specialist consultant from Air Quality Consultants Ltd. has been appointed to 
help deliver the updated AQAP. 

5.5 The risk of scope creep through the addition of non-statutory requirements to 
the AQAP process. This will be mitigated through rigorous application of the 
Defra guidance and the Defra AQAP template with recognition as to the 
regulatory roles and responsibilities of other government bodies where these 
are applicable such as the Environment Agency. Acting outside of the Council 
statutory jurisdiction will risk the updated AQAP not being accepted by Defra 
who have powers of audit over the AQAP as set out in the Air quality strategy: 
framework for local authority delivery and the Local Air Quality Management 
Framework underpinned by the Environment Act 1995 and the Air Quality 
(England) Regulations 2000 (as amended in 2002). 

6. Procurement comments  

6.1 A procurement mini tender exercise was conducted in December and January 
2024 by the Councils Procurement Officers and the Project Team. The tender 
exercise resulted in no bids, therefore in accordance with procurement advice 

Page 7



 
 

a direct appointment was made for specialist consultancy services that could 
be delivered to the timescale required by Defra.  

7. Legal comments  

7.1 Local air quality management is a statutory process introduced by the 
Environment Act 1985 (Part IV), which places a legal duty on all local 
authorities to regularly review both the current and future air quality within 
their areas. 

7.2 These air quality reviews must follow Government guidance that sets health-
based objectives, which are based on what is considered acceptable given 
the known effects. 

8. Other considerations 

8.1 There are none. 

9. Equality and Diversity 

9.1 The AQAP is intended to help secure improvements to local air quality which 
benefit all members of the community, particularly those who are considered 
most vulnerable to the health impacts of poor air quality. 

9.2 Air pollution is known to disproportionately effect less economically affluent 
communities, often these communities have lower levels of car ownership and 
a greater level of poor respiratory health. Actions to improve air quality can 
benefit these communities. 

9.3 Policies within the AQAP have undergone an equalities impact assessment 
analysis to determine whether there is a disadvantage to a particular 
community. For Transport schemes the delivering Transport Authority will be 
responsible for ensuring that equality and diversity impacts are considered. 

10. Sustainability/Climate Change Implications 

10.1 Updating the Borough’s Air Quality Action Plan is an important step in seeking 
to reduce the Borough’s emissions in terms of air pollutants. Actions and 
policies to reduce air pollutant emissions from traffic will also help to reduce 
traffic related greenhouse gas emissions. 

11. Timetable for implementation 

11.1 The draft AQAP will need to be signed off by the Committee. Once approved 
Spelthorne Borough Council must seek sign off from the Director of Public 
Health at Surrey County Council. 

11.2 The draft AQAP will then be subject to a Public Consultation exercise, 
scrutiny by Defra and to consultation with neighbouring Districts and 
Boroughs. 

11.3 The Public Consultation will run for at least 4 weeks via the Council’s digital 
consultation platform, with hard copy documents and comments boxes placed 
within the Council’s libraries and Community Centres. It is intended for the 
Public Consultation to commence in May 2024 following the election of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner.  

11.4 Once the Public Consultation period closes and comments are received from 
Defra the comments will be collated and reviewed against the draft. 
Appropriate further actions that are suggested will be explored and 
incorporated into the finalised AQAP. 

Page 8



 
 

11.5 The finalised AQAP will be presented to the Environment and Sustainability 
Committee for approval before progressing to adoption at the Policy and 
Resources Committee in Autumn 2024. Note the timetable is not specific as 
the Committee meetings for this period are not yet scheduled and the General 
Election period restrictions may alter the timetable.    

12. Contact 

12.1 Please contact the Pollution Control team at 
Pollution.Control@spelthorne.gov.uk for queries relating to this paper. 

 
Background papers:  
There are none. 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A: Draft Spelthorne Air Quality Action Plan 
 
The draft Air Quality Action Plan sets out updated information on local air quality, in 
summary that there is by the most recently available annual dataset no exceedance 
of air quality objectives with relevant exposure, and a set of actions that the Council 
will commit to in safeguarding local air quality. 
 
The draft Air Quality Action Plan is formatted in accordance with strict template 
provided by Defra. 
 
Appendix B: Equality and Diversity Impacts Assessment for the Air Quality Action 
Plan.  
 
The document provides consideration of policies and actions which may impact upon 
specific groups of people and whether mitigation for such impacts is required.   

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 

2024   

   

Spelthorne Borough Council  

Air Quality Action Plan 

In fulfilment of Part IV of the Environment Act 1995 

Local Air Quality Management 

2024 

  

Page 11



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 

2024   

Information Spelthorne Borough Council Details 

Local Authority Officer 
Claire Lucas Principal Pollution Control 

Officer 

Department Environmental Health 

Address 
Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-

upon-Thames, TW18 1XB 

Telephone 01784 444 213 

E-mail pollution.control@spelthorne.gov.uk 

Report Reference Number 24/00901/PROJAQ 

Date April 2024 

 

Page 12



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024   

Executive Summary 

This Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) has been produced as part of our statutory 

duties required by the Local Air Quality Management framework. It outlines the action 

we will take to improve air quality in Spelthorne Borough Council (SBC) between 

2024 and 2029. 

This action plan replaces the previous action plan which ran from 2005. The 2005 

AQAP contained 43 actions to reduce NO2 within Spelthorne, covering a range of 

topics including:   

 Reducing road emissions; 

 Reducing emissions from the Council’s activities; 

 Reducing emissions from Heathrow airport; 

 Reducing emissions from land use; 

 Reducing emissions from industrial sources; 

 Reducing smoke emissions; 

 Increasing energy efficiency; 

 Increasing Air Quality Monitoring; 

 Raising awareness and increasing available information regarding air quality 

and its improvement; and 

 Working in Partnership to control and improve air quality. 

Air pollution is associated with a number of adverse health impacts. It is recognised 

as a contributing factor in the onset of heart disease and cancer. Additionally, air 

pollution particularly affects the most vulnerable in society: children and older people, 

and those with heart and lung conditions. There is also often a strong correlation with 

Page 13



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 i 

equalities issues, because areas with poor air quality are also often the less affluent 

areas1,2. 

The annual health cost to society of the impacts of particulate matter alone in the UK 

is estimated to be around £16 billion3. Spelthorne Borough Council is committed to 

reducing the exposure of people in Spelthorne to poor air quality in order to improve 

health. 

We have developed actions that can be considered under seven broad topics: 

 Policy guidance and development control 

 Promoting low emission plants 

 Promoting low emission transport 

 Promoting travel alternatives 

 Public information 

 Transport planning and infrastructure 

 Traffic management 

As a result of the source apportionment outlined in the report, the following priorities 

have been identified: 

 Priority 1 – to maintain air pollutant concentrations below current air quality 

objectives and where practicable, reduce emissions further to work towards 

WHO Guideline Values; 

 Priority 2 - to work collaboratively with Surrey County Council (SCC) to ensure 

that wider transport measures are delivered, in particular to increase the use 

of active travel and public transport and reduce the use of private vehicles, 

                                            

 

1 Environmental equity, air quality, socioeconomic status and respiratory health, 2010 

2 Air quality and social deprivation in the UK: an environmental inequalities analysis, 2006 

3 Defra. Abatement cost guidance for valuing changes in air quality, May 2013 

Page 14



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 ii 

and to increase the proportions of low and zero emission vehicles where 

modal shift is not feasible; 

 Priority 3 – work collaboratively with Heathrow Airport Ltd to address 

emissions associated with the airport operations;  

 Priority 4 – to work collaboratively within SBC, across Surrey, with 

neighbouring London Boroughs and with wider stakeholders such as National 

Highways and the Environment Agency to reduce emissions of particulate 

matter and NOx from a range of sources within and out with the borough; and 

 Priority 5 – report on an annual basis to Defra the implementation of the 

measures set out in this report, as well as monitored concentrations within the 

AQMAs. 

In this AQAP we outline how we plan to effectively tackle air quality issues within our 

control. However, we recognise that there are a large number of air quality policy 

areas that are outside of our influence (such as vehicle emissions standards agreed 

in Europe), but for which we may have useful evidence, and so we will continue to 

work with regional and central government on policies and issues beyond Spelthorne 

Borough Council’s direct influence. 

Responsibilities and Commitment 

This AQAP was prepared by Air Quality Consultants Ltd and Spelthorne Borough 

Council with the support and agreement of the following departments and wider 

stakeholders: 

 Strategic Planning (SBC); 

 Climate Change and Sustainability (SBC); 

 Transport (SCC); 

 Public Health (SCC); 

 Environmental Health (SBC); 

 Neighbourhood services / fleet (SBC); 

 Leisure (health and wellbeing and active travel) (SBC); 

Page 15



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 iii 

 Heathrow Airport Ltd; and 

 National Highways. 

This AQAP will be approved by the Environment and Sustainability Committee.  

Specific measures which need external input, such as that relating to Heathrow 

Airport and transport measures which require Surrey County Council input have been 

agreed separately with those stakeholders. 

This AQAP has not been signed off by a Director of Public Health. 

This AQAP will be subject to an annual review, appraisal of progress and reporting to 

the Environment and Sustainability Committee. Progress each year will be reported 

in the Annual Status Reports (ASRs) produced by Spelthorne Borough Council, as 

part of our statutory Local Air Quality Management duties. 

If you have any comments on this AQAP please send them to Pollution Control at: 

Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames, TW18 1XB  

01784 444 213 

pollution.control@spelthorne.gov.uk 

Page 16



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 iv 

Table of Contents 

Executive Summary ...................................................................................................   

Responsibilities and Commitment ...................................................................................... ii 

Table of Contents ............................................................................................................. iv 

1 Introduction ...................................................................................................... 1 

2 Summary of Current Air Quality in Spelthorne .............................................. 2 

2.1 Pollutants and Health Effects Relevant to Spelthorne ............................................ 3 

3 Spelthorne’s Air Quality Priorities .................................................................. 4 

3.1 Public Health Context ............................................................................................ 4 

3.2 Planning and Policy Context .................................................................................. 5 

3.2.1 Local Plan .............................................................................................. 5 

3.2.2 Climate Strategy and Action Plan .......................................................... 7 

3.2.3 Health and Wellbeing Action Plan .......................................................... 8 

3.2.4 Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Plan ........................................................ 8 

3.2.5 Local Transport Plan .............................................................................. 8 

3.2.6 Surrey Climate Change Strategy ........................................................... 9 

3.2.7 Surrey Joint Strategic Needs Assessment ........................................... 10 

3.2.8 Heathrow 2.0 ....................................................................................... 10 

3.2.9 Wider actions ....................................................................................... 11 

3.3 Source Apportionment ..........................................................................................13 

3.3.1 Spelthorne Modelling (Ricardo 2022) .................................................. 14 

3.3.2 Surrey Wide Modelling (CERC 2019) .................................................. 16 

3.3.1 PM2.5 emissions ................................................................................... 19 

3.3.2 Source Apportionment Summary ......................................................... 20 

3.4 Required Reduction in Emissions .........................................................................21 

3.5 Key Priorities ........................................................................................................22 

Page 17



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 v 

4 Development and Implementation of Spelthorne Borough Council 

AQAP ....................................................................................................................... 24 

4.1 Consultation and Stakeholder Engagement..........................................................24 

4.2 Steering Group .....................................................................................................25 

5 AQAP Measures ............................................................................................. 27 

Appendix A: Response to Consultation ............................................................... 47 

Appendix B: Reasons for Not Pursuing Action Plan Measures ......................... 48 

Glossary of Terms .................................................................................................. 49 

 

List of Tables 

Table 4.1 ‒ Consultation Undertaken ........................................................................ 24 

Table 5.1 ‒ Air Quality Action Plan Measures ........................................................... 28 

List of Figures 

Figure 1 Spelthorne AQMA showing 2022 annual mean monitored NO2 

concentrations ............................................................................................ 2 

Figure 2 CERC Source Apportionment Locations ..................................................... 16 

Figure 3 Total NOX Modelled Source Apportionment (2017) ..................................... 17 

Figure 4 NOX Road Traffic Breakdown (2017) ........................................................... 18 

Figure 5 PM2.5 Source Apportionment ....................................................................... 19 

Figure 6 PM2.5 Road Traffic Emissions Breakdown ................................................... 20 

Figure 7 Spheres of Influence and Control ................................................................ 26 

 

Page 18



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 1 

1 Introduction 

This report outlines the actions that Spelthorne Borough Council will deliver between 

2024 and 2029 in order to reduce concentrations of air pollutants and exposure to air 

pollution; thereby positively impacting on the health and quality of life of residents 

and visitors to the Spelthorne administrative area. 

It has been developed in recognition of the legal requirement on the local authority to 

work towards Air Quality Strategy (AQS) objectives under Part IV of the Environment 

Act 1995 and relevant regulations made under that part and to meet the 

requirements of the Local Air Quality Management (LAQM) statutory process. 

This Plan will be reviewed every five years at the latest and progress on measures 

set out within this Plan will be reported on annually within Spelthorne Borough 

Council’s air quality ASR.

Page 19



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 2 

2 Summary of Current Air Quality in 

Spelthorne 

Air quality in Spelthorne is generally good when compared with national air quality 

objectives. A whole borough AQMA was declared in Spelthorne in 2003 for 

exceedances of the annual mean nitrogen dioxide (NO2) objective. The AQMA was 

reduced in size in 2024 because of sustained improvements in local air quality. 

Figure 1 illustrates annual mean NO2 monitoring data for 2022 within Spelthorne (as 

compared to an annual mean air quality objective of 40 µg/m3).  These monitoring 

sites are part of a wider monitoring strategy across the borough, for both NO2 and 

PM10. 

 

Figure 1 Spelthorne AQMA showing 2022 annual mean monitored NO2 

concentrations 

In Spelthorne, there was a marginal exceedance of the annual mean NO2 objective 

within the AQMA on Stanwell Moor Road in 2022. This location is adjacent to a 

heavily trafficked road leading to the Heathrow Southern Perimeter Road, Terminal 5, 

and the M25. 

Page 20



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 3 

The monitoring site (diffusion tube) is 2.2 m from the road, and the nearest dwelling 

is set back over 11 m from the road on the opposite carriageway, and hence would 

be much lower than the air quality objective where the objective applies.  At all other 

monitoring sites within Spelthorne, concentrations have been below the objective. 

Concentrations of PM10 remained below the annual mean objective of 40 µg/m3 and 

the 24-hour mean of 50 µg/m3 not to be exceeded more than 35 times a year. 

Concentrations of PM2.5 were below the UK Limit Value of 20 µg/m3, for all monitoring 

sites in Spelthorne during 2022. Whilst the requirements of national legislation are 

met, addressing local sources of particulate pollution remains an important 

component of air quality management given the health impacts of particulate matter. 

All measurements are subject to uncertainty, and data from diffusion tubes are 

adjusted in relation to the laboratory and preparation method (a process termed bias 

adjustment) in order to improve the accuracy of annual means.  However, Defra in 

recognition of this inherent uncertainty, recommend that the revocation of an AQMA 

should only be considered following three consecutive years of annual mean nitrogen 

dioxide concentrations being lower than 36 µg/m3 (i.e., 10% below the annual mean 

objective).  In addition, pollutant concentrations may vary significantly from one year 

to the next, due to the influence of meteorological conditions, and Spelthorne 

Borough Council should be reasonably certain that any future exceedances (that 

might occur in more adverse meteorological conditions) are unlikely, before revoking 

an AQMA.  This AQAP takes into account these inherent uncertainties, while also 

taking a proportionate approach. 

Spelthorne Borough Council’s Annual Status Reports can be found at 

https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/17839/Air-quality-reports.  

2.1 Pollutants and Health Effects Relevant to Spelthorne 

Poor air quality is associated with several adverse health impacts. Vulnerable 

members of society, including children, the elderly, and those with preexisting heart 

and lung conditions, are most at risk to poor impacts from air pollution. 

The main pollutants of concern within Spelthorne Borough are NO2, predominantly 

from transport emissions, PM10 and PM2.5. 

Page 21

https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/17839/Air-quality-reports


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 4 

3 Spelthorne’s Air Quality Priorities 

3.1 Public Health Context 

Air pollution is a major public health risk ranking alongside cancer, heart disease and 

obesity.  A review by the World Health Organisation concluded that long-term 

exposure to air pollution reduces life expectancy by increasing the incidence of lung, 

heart and circulatory conditions.  The Department of Health and Social Care’s 

advisory Committee on the Medical Effects of Air Pollutants (COMEAP) has 

estimated that long-term exposure to man-made air pollution in the UK has an annual 

impact on shortening lifespans, equivalent to 28,000 to 36,000 deaths (COMEAP, 

2018).  Poor air quality can affect health at all stages of life. Those most affected are 

the young and old.  In the womb, maternal exposure to air pollution can result in low 

birth weight, premature birth, stillbirth or organ damage. In children, there is evidence 

of reduced lung capacity, while impacts in adulthood can include diabetes, heart 

disease and stroke. In old age, a lifetime of exposure to air pollution can result in 

reduced life-expectancy and reduced wellbeing at end of life. There is also emerging 

evidence for a link between air pollution and an acceleration of the decline in 

cognitive function (Defra, 2019). 

Poor air quality disproportionately affects the poorest and most vulnerable in our 

communities including children.  Public health not only aims to improve health, but 

also reduce health inequalities by using an evidence-based approach to make 

recommendations on the delivery of health and wellbeing services.  As such, this 

AQAP will support work underway within the public health arena. 

This AQAP will complement work underway at County level.  Public Health staff have 

drafted the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) which is an assessment of the 

current and future health and social care needs of the local community. The JSNA 

informs the Health and Wellbeing Strategy (HWS) which is a strategy for meeting the 

needs identified in the JSNA. These are needs that could be met by the local 

authority, Integrated Care Boards or NHS England. Within the JSNA there is a 

section on air quality.   

The Public Health Outcome Framework (PHOF) for England recognises the burden 

of ill health resulting from poor air quality. PHOF Indicator D01 reports that 6.8% of 

Page 22

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/nitrogen-dioxide-effects-on-mortality/associations-of-long-term-average-concentrations-of-nitrogen-dioxide-with-mortality-2018-comeap-summary
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/clean-air-strategy-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/clean-air-strategy-2019
https://www.surreyi.gov.uk/jsna/
https://www.healthysurrey.org.uk/about/strategy
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework/data#page/1/gid/1000043/pat/6/par/E12000008/ati/101/are/E07000216/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 5 

deaths in Spelthorne during 2022 were attributable to particulate matter (PM2.5) 

(undertaken using the ‘new method’), which is slightly higher than the Surrey (6.2%) 

and the England (5.8%) average. 

3.2 Planning and Policy Context 

3.2.1 Local Plan 

The Spelthorne Borough Council Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan 

Document (2009) has a key objective to “secure an improvement in the Borough’s air 

quality”, and there are several policies which refer to air quality. 

 Strategic Policy SP6 “Maintaining and Improving the Environment”;  

 Strategic Policy EN3: “Air Quality”; 

 Strategic Policy SP7: Climate Change and Transport; 

 Policy CC1: Renewable Energy, Energy Conservation and Sustainable 

Construction; 

 Policy CC2: Sustainable Travel; 

The council is currently working on a new draft Local Plan for 2022 to 2037; however, 

this has not yet been adopted. Within the new draft local plan, there are several 

policies which refer to air quality. 

 Policy PS1: Responding to the climate emergency; 

 Policy PS2: Designing places and spaces; 

 Policy SP7: Heathrow Airport; 

The main relevant policy is Policy E4: Environmental Protection Air Quality, which 

states:  

“1) The Council will seek to protect and improve the Borough’s air quality and 

work towards meeting the World Health Organisation Air Quality Guidelines by 

ensuring all development proposals prevent further deterioration of existing 

poor air quality and are “air quality neutral” as far as reasonably practicable.  

Page 23

https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/17620/Development-Plan-2009#:~:text=The%20Council's%20Core%20Strategy%20and,used%20for%20development%20control%20purposes.
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/17620/Development-Plan-2009#:~:text=The%20Council's%20Core%20Strategy%20and,used%20for%20development%20control%20purposes.
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/17619/Emerging-Local-Plan-2022-2037#:~:text=The%20Council%20is%20currently%20working,for%20conserving%20and%20enhancing%20the


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 6 

2) An applicant will be required to submit an air quality assessment for 

development proposals where development… <meets the criteria as set out in 

Policy E4>:  

3) For development proposals that could potentially cause, exacerbate or 

introduce new exposure to poor air quality, mitigation and compensation 

measures should be incorporated. Mitigation is required to ensure that all 

major developments are sustainable from an air quality perspective and for the 

protection of public health. Where on site measures alone are not possible or 

are insufficient to reduce the impact on air quality, applicants should consider 

the scope for mitigating the impact by contributing to funding of other initiatives 

that improve air quality.  

4) Planning permission will not be granted for proposals where adverse effects 

on air quality for existing receptors and/or future occupiers are of a significant 

scale, either individually or in combination with other proposals and/or the 

effects cannot be appropriately and effectively mitigated.” 

When referencing air quality neutral, the emerging local plan goes on to say that: 

“Individual developments are often shown to have a very small air quality 

impact. The cumulative impact of many individual schemes, deemed 

insignificant in themselves, can contribute to a ‘creeping baseline’. Therefore, 

good practice to reduce emissions and exposure should be incorporated into 

all developments* at the outset, at a scale commensurate with the emissions. 

Consideration of air quality neutrality should focus on both NOx, and PM10 

emissions, the energy sources used within buildings and emissions from the 

vehicles associated with use of the development. Mitigation measures to 

reduce emissions may be applied on-site or off-site however the exposure of 

residents to poor air quality may still result in refusal without sufficient 

mitigation in order to protect public health.” 

The new draft local plan, which will fully replace the existing Core Strategy and 

Policies Development Plan Document, will be accompanied by a Climate Change 

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). The Climate Change SPD is currently 

going through the committee approval process, and includes checklists for Minor and 

Major applications. The checklists set out all the potential measures which could be 

Page 24



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 7 

included in development schemes, including checklists for Energy, Transport, 

Construction and Waste, Green Infrastructure, Water, and Space and Place Design. 

3.2.2 Climate Strategy and Action Plan 

Spelthorne Borough Council declared a climate emergency in October 2020.  The 

Council plans to be net zero for Scope 1 and 2 emissions by 2030 (in line with Surrey 

County Council’s Greener Futures Delivery) and has produced a climate change 

strategy to help achieve this aim. The Spelthorne Climate Change Strategy and 

Action Plan 2022-2030 was approved and adopted in 2022.  The Spelthorne Borough 

Council Climate Change Strategy identified Council vehicles being the predominant 

source of the organisation’s emissions. Key actions within the Climate Change 

Strategy and Action Plan which will also benefit air quality include: 

- Reducing emissions from government buildings and operations; 

- Reducing emissions from transport within Spelthorne; 

- Creating sustainable transport in Spelthorne; and 

- Help develop sustainable communities in Spelthorne – where social, 

environmental, and financial resources meet current needs while ensuring that 

adequate resources are available for future generations. 

Within the Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan, there are numerous Actions 

which will work towards reducing air pollution. Actions relevant to air quality have 

been incorporated into Section 5 and are outlined in Table 5.1.  Collaborative working 

across the Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan, and the Air Quality Action Plan 

will be strengthened. 

It should also be noted that the predicted increase in hot dry summers as a result of 

climate change is likely to increase local air pollutant concentrations.  Changes in 

weather patterns, particularly temperature, rainfall and wind speed, are expected to 

have an effect on dispersal and concentrations of Particulate Matter and ozone, with 

local increases in ozone exacerbated during heatwaves. Therefore, provision of 

localised alerting and monitoring will become particularly important. This highlights 

the need for collaborative working across both climate and air quality to reduce 

emissions of Greenhouse Gases and local air pollutants. 

Page 25

https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21048/Climate-Change-Strategy-2022-2030
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21048/Climate-Change-Strategy-2022-2030
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/6570a68b7469300012488948/HECC-report-2023-chapter-4-outdoor-air-quality.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/6570a68b7469300012488948/HECC-report-2023-chapter-4-outdoor-air-quality.pdf


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 8 

3.2.3 Health and Wellbeing Action Plan  

Spelthorne published their Health and Wellbeing Action Plan 2022-2024 in 2022. 

Within this, there are two Actions which are relevant to Air Quality:  

“Work to reduce air pollution through promoting air alert system, specific campaigns 

e.g. anti-idling/bonfires/Clean Air Day and write the air quality action plan”  

And to: 

“Plant more trees to promote biodiversity, air quality, reduce flooding and clean air” 

3.2.4 Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Plan 

Spelthorne Borough Council has adopted an Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Strategy 

2023 to 2030, in response to the Climate Change Strategy which outlined a key 

action to further improve EV infrastructure throughout the borough and develop an 

EV infrastructure strategy. One of the strategic objectives within the EV strategy is to:  

“Improve the air quality through reducing harmful pollutants attributed to internal 

combustion vehicles, nitrous oxide [sic], and particulate matter.” 

SBC have set a number of objectives to achieve transition to EVs, including as a 

local authority and employer, as a taxi licensing authority, in accordance with Building 

Regulations and as a landowner, car park operator and landlord. 

3.2.5 Local Transport Plan 

Surrey County Council’s fourth Local Transport Plan, (LTP4) sets out plans for 

transforming Surreys transport network from 2022 up to 2032 and beyond, including 

changes required to achieve net zero emissions by 2050.  SCC are committed to 

significantly transforming transport networks to meet this national target and LTP4 

sets out the following key themes: 

 Active travel and personal mobility; 

 Public and shared transport; 

 Promoting zero emission vehicles; and 

 Planning for Place. 

Page 26

https://democracy.spelthorne.gov.uk/documents/s42682/Appendix%20B%20-%20Spelthorne%20Health%20Wellbeing%20Action%20Plan.pdf
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21504/Electric-Vehicle-Infrastructure-Strategy-2023-2030
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21504/Electric-Vehicle-Infrastructure-Strategy-2023-2030
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/policies-plans-consultations/transport-plan


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 9 

In the short-term (to 2025), LTP measures will be focused on achieving a 'green' and 

'healthy' recovery of transport choices after Covid-19, and taking action and 

strengthening transport links to deliver the planning, development, design, public 

space management and digital connectivity aspects of the LTP4. This also includes 

building on the increased interest in walking and cycling to start a 'shift' away from 

car dependency, rebuilding trust in public transport, accelerating EV uptake, 

continuing to build on existing good practice, and delivery of relevant schemes.  All of 

these shifts will reduce local air quality emissions and therefore assist with the 

delivery of this AQAP. 

3.2.6 Surrey Climate Change Strategy 

Surrey’s Climate Change Strategy 2020 and the more recent Climate Change 

Adaptation and Resilience Strategy 2023 (known as “Surrey Adapt”) set out Surrey’s 

collective approach with the Boroughs and Districts to reducing greenhouse gas 

emissions and adapting to climate change.   

Council Emissions 

In relation to Council emissions, Strategic Priority 2 (SP2), that all council-owned 

vehicles, including SCC-owned bus fleet, to be zero carbon by 2030 or sooner is the 

most relevant to this AQAP. 

Transport 

In relation to transport and air quality, the strategy takes a three-pronged approach of 

reducing journeys, shifting to an increased use of public and active transport modes, 

and developing zero emission vehicle options.  This approach is consistent with the 

aims of this AQAP, hence collaboration with SCC’s transport team in the preparation 

of this document.  There is a target for 60% emission reduction in the Transport 

sector by 2035 against ‘Business As Usual’ as a minimum.  Strategic priorities are: 

 Strategic Priority 1 (SP1) - Prioritise investment in place-based development 

that creates well-connected communities close to high quality places, spaces 

and services to reduce the number and length of car journeys for all residents. 

 Strategic Priority 2 (SP2) - Invest in initiatives and infrastructure to increase 

the uptake of walking, cycling and public transport, alongside schemes to 

Page 27

https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/community/climate-change/what-are-we-doing/climate-change-strategy/2020
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/community/climate-change/what-are-we-doing/adaptation-and-resilience/adaptation-strategy
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/community/climate-change/what-are-we-doing/adaptation-and-resilience/adaptation-strategy


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 10 

reduce reliance on the car for example ultra-low emission zones, 

pedestrianisation and car-free zones. 

 Strategic Priority 3 (SP3) - Invest in and support the development of the 

infrastructure required to support the move to zero emission vehicles for 

journeys that cannot be made on foot, by bicycle or public transport. 

Housing and Planning 

The Strategy focuses on improving the energy efficiency of buildings, which would 

also reduce NOx emissions from gas boilers.  Additionally, Strategic Priority 3 (SP3) 

minimises transport emissions by promoting residential development that is 

sustainably located and allows safe and easy access for residents to existing 

services and transport hubs. 

3.2.7 Surrey Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  

The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) is an assessment of the current and 

future health and social care needs of the population of Surrey. The JSNA informs 

the Health and Wellbeing Strategy (HWS) which outlines the collective health 

priorities for all partners across Surrey.  The JSNA adopts a ‘chapter’ structure, 

where each chapter describes the needs around a specific area of health and social 

care. There is to be a chapter on air quality within this new structure. 

3.2.8 Heathrow 2.0 

Heathrow Airport Ltd is the owner and operator of Heathrow Airport, immediately to 

the north of Spelthorne. Whilst the airport is not within the boundaries of the Council, 

the operation of the airport, particularly in terms of surface access transportation, 

does impact on the Borough.  Heathrow Airport Ltd is a private company and not a 

public body, and hence the obligations upon them are not the same as other 

organisations that Spelthorne collaborates with to improve air quality. Nevertheless, 

the company is committed to reducing the impact of it’s operations, and published it’s 

Sustainable Growth Strategy – Heathrow 2.0 (Heathrow Ltd, 2022) in 2022.  

The strategy sets out goals to achieve by 2030 based around two pillars: 

Page 28

https://www.healthysurrey.org.uk/about/strategy/surrey-health-and-well-being-strategy-update-2022


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 11 

Net zero aviation to work towards our vision of sustainable aviation 

at Heathrow and across our industry.  

A great place to live and work to improve the quality of life of our 

colleagues and our neighbours and make a positive impact in our 

community. 

Net zero goals will have associated reductions in air pollutants, but the strategy has a 

specific goal for air quality: 

Clean air at and around the airport.  Goal by 2030: Reduce NOx 

airside by 18% compared to 2019 

To work towards this Heathrow have set 5 targets: 

 At least 45% of passengers using public transport by 2026; 

 No more than 57% of colleague single occupancy vehicle trip mode share by 

2026; 

 By 2026 increase the use of public transport by 25% for the UK population 

visiting the airport and located within 1.5 hours and by 12% for those living 

within 3 hours; 

 By 2030 all airport vehicles are zero emission or use biofuels; and 

 An airside ULEZ in place by 2025. 

SBC Officers engage with Heathrow on air quality through membership of the 

Council for the Independent Scrutiny of Heathrow Airport (CISHA), Air Quality 

Working Group https://www.cisha.org/forums.  

3.2.9 Wider actions  

There are two actions already underway that have not been included as specific 

actions in the AQAP. However, they are likely to positively impact on air quality within 

Spelthorne. These measures are discussed below. 

A3 Guildford scheme to encourage uptake of EV 

Guildford Borough Council undertook analysis of the traffic using the Guildford 

section of the A3 and proposed initiatives to improve emissions. Although the 

Page 29

https://www.cisha.org/forums
https://www.guildford.gov.uk/article/26606/%20Working-to-improve-air-quality-on-the-A3-%20in-Guildford


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 12 

proposed initiatives are targeted at Guildford they will provide useful experience that 

can be applied across Surrey in the future and the resulting increased number of 

electric vans on the road is likely to benefit Surrey more widely, both in giving 

confidence of appropriate charging infrastructure across the county and that vehicles 

will travel more widely than Guildford. 

The work has identified that:  

 most vehicles using the Guildford A3 section are making journeys which do 

not start or end in Guildford; 

 80% of the NOx emissions are from diesel vans and cars; and 

 vans make up 15% of traffic but account for 45% of emissions.  

These findings suggest that just targeting local vehicle users will not lead to the 

required improvements to air quality around the A3. As a result, an A3 EV grant 

funding programme is run by Surrey County Council.  

Impacts of the London ULEZ expansion on Spelthorne 

Spelthorne borders three London boroughs; Hounslow, Hillingdon, and Richmond 

upon Thames.  As such the expansion of the ULEZ to the London Boundary will 

potentially affect air quality in Spelthorne, both in terms of re-routing of traffic and 

fleet changes.  

The ULEZ expansion has led to some improvements to transport for staff to and from 

Heathrow Airport which is now situated within the charging zone, in order that staff 

with non-compliant vehicles can still get to work without using their vehicles. These 

include a coach service for staff from Basingstoke that will run along the M3, a new 

H21 Bedfont bus, increased frequency on the 442 service via Stanwell and Ashford, 

and reintroduction of the X442 service from Staines Railway Station. These 

measures could reduce the volume of non ULEZ compliant vehicles travelling 

through Spelthorne, by providing an alternative to getting to Heathrow on public 

transport.   

However, there has been an increase in airport related taxi and private hire vehicles 

waiting in Stanwell and Stanwell Moor. This could be because they are non ULEZ 

compliant vehicles. Spelthorne has recently consulted on a Public Space Protection 

Order containing measures to help address this.  

Page 30

https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/community/climate-change/businesses/grant-programmes/a3-ev-grant
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/community/climate-change/businesses/grant-programmes/a3-ev-grant
https://spelthorne.inconsult.uk/PSPOmisuseofland/consultationHome
https://spelthorne.inconsult.uk/PSPOmisuseofland/consultationHome


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 13 

In time it is likely that residents and businesses in Spelthorne, by virtue of the 

proximity of London and the need to travel in and out of the ULEZ charging zone, will 

upgrade to ULEZ compliant vehicles. This will accelerate the fleet turnover to newer 

vehicles with lower emissions which will benefit local air quality. Vehicles traveling 

from London to Spelthorne benefit from the TfL scrappage scheme, which may 

improve the fleet travelling out of London.  

Now that the ULEZ is in place the offset between any re-routing, and fleet 

improvements can be monitored. It is difficult to isolate the effects of the expanded 

ULEZ on air quality monitoring data due to many policies to improve air quality being 

implemented simultaneously, in combination with other elements affecting 

concentrations such as the weather. However, the London-wide Ultra Low Emission 

Zone First Month Report does indicate some improvements to the fleet as a result of 

the ULEZ. Vehicle compliance in the expanded outer London area is now 95.2%, up 

from 85.1% in May 2022 when the consultation on proposals to expand the ULEZ 

London-wide launched, and from 90.9% in June 2023. Generally, London’s air quality 

is improving, as set out in the report Air Quality in London 2016-2024. Preliminary 

figures indicate that annual average concentrations of NO2 in London dropped to the 

lowest levels ever recorded in 2023, lower even than the first year of COVID-19 

lockdowns. 2023 was also the first year since records began when annual mean 

particulate matter (PM2.5) concentrations did not exceed the latest interim World 

Health Organization (WHO) air quality target across London’s active air quality 

monitoring sites. 

3.3 Source Apportionment 

The AQAP measures presented in this report are intended to be targeted towards the 

predominant sources of emissions within Spelthorne Borough Council’s area.  Two 

source apportionment exercises have been undertaken at different times, the most 

recent by Ricardo (as summarised in the 2023 ASR pg. 75-78 

https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/17839/Air-quality-reports), at 7 areas across the 

borough which were identified as locations most likely to exceed air quality 

objectives.  The second was part of a Surrey wide modelling exercise undertaken by 

CERC with a baseline of 2017.  

Page 31

https://www.london.gov.uk/programmes-strategies/environment-and-climate-change/environment-and-climate-change-publications/london-wide-ultra-low-emission-zone-first-month-report
https://www.london.gov.uk/programmes-strategies/environment-and-climate-change/environment-and-climate-change-publications/london-wide-ultra-low-emission-zone-first-month-report
https://www.london.gov.uk/programmes-strategies/environment-and-climate-change/environment-and-climate-change-publications/air-quality-london-2016-2024
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/17839/Air-quality-reports
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Portals/0/Documents/services/environmental-concerns/pollution-control/air%20quality/Detailed_air_quality_modelling_report_for_Surrey_from_CERC___August_2019.pdf?ver=N6m7p2cykQG1VcKdkOYhVg%3D%3D


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 14 

3.3.1 Spelthorne Modelling (Ricardo 2022) 

Where annual mean pollutant concentrations close to, or in excess of, the air quality 

objectives were modelled in 2019, source apportionment was undertaken at up to 

three worst-case receptors in each study area. As there were no modelled 

exceedances of the PM10 or PM2.5 annual mean objectives; source apportionment 

was undertaken for NOx only. The outcomes of the source apportionment analysis 

are summarised below: 

In Sunbury 

 exceedances of the NO2 annual mean objective were predicted at ground level 

receptor locations at Vicarage Road, Staines Road West and Green St in 

2019; all of which are located close to junctions where average traffic speeds 

are likely to be low; 

 the largest proportions of NOx were attributable to background concentrations;  

 diesel cars account for the largest proportion of road NOx concentrations 

(approximately 33% of total NOx); and 

 at relevant locations, compliance was predicted by 2022. 

In Staines 

 The maximum ground level concentrations have been predicted along London 

Road and near the Crooked Billet Roundabout, with compliance predicted by 

2022; 

 the largest proportions of NOx were attributable to background concentrations;  

 Diesel cars account for the largest proportion of road NOx concentrations 

(ranging from 33%-42% of total NOx) with buses contributing 12%-14% of 

total NOx emissions.  

In Georgian Close 

 modelling results indicate that exceedances of the air quality objectives are 

highly unlikely;  

 The largest proportion of NOx was attributable to background concentrations 

(68%); 

Page 32



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 15 

 The highest proportion of road NOx was attributable to diesel cars (19% of 

total NOx). 

In Ashford 

 No exceedances of the NO2 annual mean objective were predicted at any 

receptor location in Ashford ; 

 Similarly to the other locations, the largest proportion of NOx is due to 

background, and diesel cars account for the largest proportion of road NOx 

concentrations (7%-13% of total NOx emissions).  

In Lower Halliford – Shepperton 

 NO2 annual means exceedance was predicted at one ground level residential 

receptor locations on Walton Bridge Road, with compliance predicted by 2021; 

 Similarly to the other locations, the largest proportion of NOx is due to 

background, and diesel cars account for the largest proportion of road NOx 

concentrations (36%-42% of total NOx emissions);  

 LGVs contributed to 9%-16% of NOx emissions on Walton Bridge Road and 

the Upper Halliford Bypass.  

In Moor Lane 

 There was one exceedance of the NO2 annual mean objective at a first-floor 

residential property at the junction of Church St and Bridge St in 2019 only;  

 Similarly to the other locations, the largest proportion of NOx is due to 

background, and diesel cars account for the largest proportion of road NOx 

concentrations (24%-26% of total NOx emissions); 

 LGVs contributed to 12-23% of NOx emissions on the M25 and Bridge St, but 

only 2% on the A30.  

In summary,  

 The largest proportions of NOx were attributable to background concentrations 

(ranging from 30%-68%), which are not under the control of SBC, but highlight 

the importance of partnership working, including regionally and more widely; 

Page 33



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 16 

 diesel cars account for the largest proportion of road NOx concentrations 

(ranging from 19%-42%).  

3.3.2 Surrey Wide Modelling (CERC 2019) 

A source apportionment exercise was carried out by CERC as part of a wider 

modelling study across Surrey in 2019 using a base year of 2017.  Figure 2 shows 

the locations where the source apportionment was undertaken. Although the data are 

based on 2017 emissions, It is considered that for the purposes of targeting actions, 

the work presented below will represent the sources of relevance.  It should be noted 

that the AQAP includes a measure to update the Surrey wide modelling of air quality, 

which will provide an update to the source apportionment work. 

 

Figure 2 CERC Source Apportionment Locations 

NOX emissions 

Figure 3 and Figure 4 show source apportionment at diffusion tube sites in 

Spelthorne for NOX in 2017 based on modelling undertaken across Surrey by CERC.   

Page 34

https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Portals/0/Documents/services/environmental-concerns/pollution-control/air%20quality/Detailed_air_quality_modelling_report_for_Surrey_from_CERC___August_2019.pdf?ver=N6m7p2cykQG1VcKdkOYhVg%3D%3D
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Portals/0/Documents/services/environmental-concerns/pollution-control/air%20quality/Detailed_air_quality_modelling_report_for_Surrey_from_CERC___August_2019.pdf?ver=N6m7p2cykQG1VcKdkOYhVg%3D%3D


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 17 

 

Figure 3 Total NOX Modelled Source Apportionment (2017) 

Page 35



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 18 

 

Figure 4 NOX Road Traffic Breakdown (2017) 

Figure 3 shows that, as would be expected at roadside monitoring locations, road 

traffic was the largest source of NOX emissions in Spelthorne Borough at the majority 

of locations. At some sites background emissions were the greatest contributor to 

NOX concentrations.  

Large industrial sources contributed a very little amount (<1.4%) to NOX 

concentrations at measurement locations within Spelthorne.  

Although, at the time that this modelling was undertaken, the EcoPark in Shepperton 

was not in place, it should be noted that regulated industrial installations are required 

under permit terms to mitigate pollutant emissions to air.  This installation is permitted 

by the Environment Agency, who have noted in consultation as part of this AQAP 

that the permit issued to the site is regularly inspected by EA staff and emissions 

from the gasification process remain within the emission limits set out in the permit 

and the associated legislation. The Environment Agency currently rate the 

environmental performance of permitted sites using compliance bands which go from 

band A for a good site to band F for a poorly performing site. The EcoPark site 

currently sits in compliance band B for 2022 and the Environment Agency expect the 

Page 36



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 19 

site to be compliance band A for the year 2023.  It is therefore unlikely that this 

source will give rise to a significant source of emissions. 

From the CERC modelling, ‘Other’ contributions to NOX concentrations were on 

average 18% across Spelthorne. However, this was notably higher at site SPEL_023 

on the A3044 close to Heathrow (see Figure 2), where ‘other’ contributed 33% of NOx 

concentrations. This is to be expected as airport emissions are included in the ‘other’ 

category. 

Figure 4 shows that of the road traffic components contributing to NOx concentrations 

within Spelthorne, diesel cars were on average the greatest contributor to road traffic 

emissions (38%), followed by LGVs (35%).  It is likely that since 2017, the proportion 

of diesel cars has reduced, but LGVs may have increased. 

3.3.1 PM2.5 emissions 

Figures 5 and 6 show source apportionment at the same sites for PM2.5 in 2017 

based on modelling undertaken across Surrey by CERC 

 

Figure 5 PM2.5 Source Apportionment 

 

Page 37



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 20 

 

Figure 6 PM2.5 Road Traffic Emissions Breakdown 

Figure 5 shows that the largest source of PM2.5 is ‘Background’, contributing on 

average 75% of PM2.5 concentrations across Spelthorne and reflecting the 

transboundary nature of this pollutant. Road sources contribute on average less than 

8% to PM2.5 concentrations in Spelthorne. Of the road sources Figure 6 shows that 

the largest contributor to emissions is tyre wear on average (32%), followed by brake 

wear (26%) and road wear (21%), with tailpipe emissions making up only a small 

proportion of PM2.5 emissions from road sources. Large Industrial sources contribute 

less than 0.3% on average to PM2.5 concentrations in Spelthorne.  

3.3.2 Source Apportionment Summary 

For 2017 the CERC modelling showed that generally the largest contribution to NOx 

concentrations at roadside locations was from road traffic. The Ricardo modelling in 

2019 showed that generally the largest contribution was from background sources. 

The differences in modelling methodology may account for some of this difference, 

but it is also indicative of the national trend towards lower vehicle emissions, with the 

Ricardo modelling having been undertaken in a later year (and hence with cleaner 

Page 38



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 21 

vehicle fleet). Although background concentrations will also have reduced, 

proportionally, this will not have been as great a reduction as for vehicle emissions. 

When looking at the road emissions in more detail, both the CERC and Ricardo 

assessments showed that diesel vehicles were the largest contributor to NOx 

emissions.  

3.3.1 River Emissions 

River emissions have been identified as a potential source of both NOx, PM10 and 

PM2.5 with regards to diesel pleasure boats.  This particular source is not 

incorporated into the above modelling, and there is a lack of information generally on 

vessels on inland waterways, and therefore it is difficult to assess what contribution 

they may be making.  It is likely that while individual river boats can be significant 

sources of air pollutant emissions, mainly due to the age and simplicity of their 

engines, together their impact on local air quality is likely to be small.   

Defra, in 2019, had a Call for Evidence on those vessels operating domestically in 

the UK, the aim of which, as set out in the Clean Air Strategy, is: “…to collect a body 

of evidence that will allow us to understand more clearly the extent of emissions from 

vessels which do not currently fall within the remit of environmental regulations, 

which are currently mainly based on UK implementation of international conventions.”  

The outcomes of this Call for Evidence have not been published, and SBC is aware 

of work within central London with regard to retrofitting inland commercial vessels 

with an after-exhaust treatment.  SBC will investigate the feasibility of extending 

monitoring to incorporate sites close to the River, and will keep abreast of any 

improvements in evidence with regards to quantifying and reducing emissions from 

diesel inland boats. 

3.4 Required Reduction in Emissions 

As the air quality objectives are currently (2022) being met at relevant locations in 

Spelthorne, there is no specific reduction in emissions required.  However, as noted 

previously, although compliance with air quality objectives is important, from a health 

perspective, a general reduction in emissions of the key pollutants (including PM10 

and PM2.5) may provide better health outcomes than focussing on hotspot locations.  

For this reason, wider, more strategic measures have been included and the Council 

Page 39



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 22 

will be working towards ongoing improvements in pollutant concentrations below the 

current air quality objectives. 

The most recent modelling exercise (carried out by Ricardo with modelled 

concentrations for 2019) concluded that all areas of the Borough that were modelled 

were predicted to have concentrations below the objective for NO2 by 2022 at the 

latest, which is supported by the monitoring for 2022.  

Given the above, while this document is an AQAP required in relation to the declared 

AQMA, strategic measures are included to improve air quality in the Borough more 

widely which also reflects the priorities of the Council as outlined below. 

3.5 Key Priorities 

The air quality objectives have been achieved at relevant locations since 2020, 

however the need to reduce concentrations, even below the current air quality 

objective level is recognised, in order to maximise health improvements. 

In terms of NO2, road transport is the largest source and therefore in order to reduce 

NO2 concentrations, reductions need to focus particularly on diesel vehicles, mainly 

cars and LGVs, and to a lesser extent HGVs.  At some locations, the airport is also a 

contributor to overall emissions and collaborative working with Heathrow Airport Ltd 

will continue to reduce this source. 

For PM2.5 background (i.e. non-road) concentrations are the largest contributor to 

overall concentrations.  This ‘background’ concentration includes large contributors to 

primary PM2.5 concentrations, such as domestic solid fuel burning, which have not 

been explicitly modelled.  PM2.5 has a wide range of sources and in order to assist 

with reductions in PM2.5, SBC will be introducing measures to reduce greenhouse 

gas emissions (which should also reduce PM2.5 due to a reduction in combustion) 

and ensure that domestic solid fuel burning is further addressed through information 

campaigns. 

In terms of traffic related PM2.5, Figure 6 shows that the majority of emissions are 

from brake, trye and road wear, rather than from the tailpipe.  For this reason, the 

switch to electric vehicles will not reduce particulate matter to the same extent as it 

does for nitrogen dioxide, although the use of regenerative braking in electric 

Page 40



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 23 

vehicles will help reduce brake wear. Nevertheless, actions are included to reduce 

the growth in vehicle use (for example by encouraging active forms of travel). 

It is noted that secondary particulate matter (formed by chemical reactions in the 

atmosphere) is an important source of both PM10 and PM2.5.  The Council are mindful 

that there is likely to be emerging guidance from Government on reducing PM2.5 

emissions through the planning system, which may also include precursors 

(chemicals that react in the atmosphere to form secondary particulate matter), which 

will also be implemented as required. 

As a result of the source apportionment outlined above, the following priorities have 

been identified: 

 Priority 1 – to maintain air pollutant concentrations below current air quality 

objectives and where practicable, reduce emissions further to work towards 

WHO Guideline Values; 

 Priority 2 - to work collaboratively with SCC to ensure that wider transport 

measures are delivered, in particular to increase the use of active travel and 

public transport and reduce the use of private vehicles, and to increase the 

proportions of low and zero emission vehicles where modal shift is not 

feasible; 

 Priority 3 – work collaboratively with Heathrow Airport Ltd to address 

emissions associated with the airport operations;  

 Priority 4 – to work collaboratively within SBC, across Surrey, with 

neighbouring London Boroughs and with wider stakeholders such as national 

Highways and the Environment Agency to reduce emissions of particulates 

and NOx from a range of sources within and out with the borough; and 

 Priority 5 – report on an annual basis to Defra the implementation of the 

measures set out in this report, as well as monitored concentrations within the 

AQMAs. 

Page 41



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 24 

4 Development and Implementation of 

Spelthorne Borough Council AQAP 

4.1 Consultation and Stakeholder Engagement 

In developing this AQAP, we have worked with Surrey County Council, National 

Highways, Heathrow Airport Ltd, other local authorities (through the Surrey Air 

Alliance), and the local community to improve local air quality. Schedule 11 of the 

Environment Act 1995 requires local authorities to consult the bodies listed in Table 

4.1. Consultation based on this document will be undertaken both online and directly 

with wider stakeholders listed in Table 4.1. 

The response to the consultation stakeholder engagement will be given in Appendix 

A: Response to Consultation in future versions of this report. 

Table 4.1 ‒ Consultation Undertaken 

Consultee Consultation Undertaken 

The Secretary of State Yes, draft report to be submitted to Defra 

The Environment Agency 
Yes, invited to Steering Group Meeting, 

feedback given prior to the meeting 

The highways authority 
Yes, Surrey County Council transport key 

member of Air Quality Steering Group 

All neighbouring local authorities 

Yes, through Surrey Air Alliance and 

neighbouring London Boroughs will be 

consulted on as part of the wider public 

consultation  

Other public authorities as 

appropriate, such as Public Health 

officials 

Yes, through Surrey Air Alliance 

Page 42



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 25 

Consultee Consultation Undertaken 

Bodies representing local business 

interests and other organisations as 

appropriate 

Will be undertaken through online 

consultation  

4.2 Steering Group 

A Steering Group was set up in order to take this Action Plan revision forward.   

A Steering Group meeting was held on 6th March 2024 facilitated by Air Quality 

Consultants Ltd. Attendees represented a wide range of stakeholders and Council 

departments. In attendance were representatives of: 

 Strategic Planning (SBC); 

 Climate Change and Sustainability (SBC); 

 Transport (SCC); 

 Environmental Health (SBC); 

 Neighbourhood services / fleet (SBC); 

 Leisure (health and wellbeing and active travel) (SBC); 

 National Highways. 

A separate meeting was held with representatives from Heathrow Airport Ltd and 

feedback on measures was also received from the Environment Agency.  A members 

briefing has also been held as part of the consultation process. 

Discussions have focused on each of the categories of actions and sought updates 

on current actions and new actions were also discussed. 

It should be noted that as a tiered authority, Spelthorne Borough Council has a 

limited sphere of control and a wider sphere of influence. Figure 7 sets out the 

spheres of influence and control, which have been taken on board for measures 

within the AQAP. 

 

Page 43



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 26 

 

Figure 7 Spheres of Influence and Control 

 

Page 44



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024 27 

5 AQAP Measures 

The measures included in this AQAP reflect the priorities of SBC, which focus 

primarily on strategic measures, including; those to reduce emissions from traffic 

through modal shift to active travel, those working in the longer term to reduce the 

need to travel, delivery of actions to increase low and zero emission vehicles in the 

fleet, raising awareness and reducing emissions from commercial and domestic 

heating sources. Many of the actions to reduce a range of sources of emissions are 

not within the control of SBC and hence a theme of this document is ongoing 

collaborative working with other organisations including Surrey County Council, 

Heathrow Airport Ltd, National Highways, and across neighbouring local authorities 

in Surrey and London, through both improvements in policy and direct actions.   

Table 5.1 shows the Spelthorne Borough Council AQAP measures. It contains: 

 a list of the actions that form part of the plan 

 the responsible individual and departments/organisations who will deliver this 

action 

 estimated cost of implementing each action (overall cost and cost to the local 

authority) 

 expected benefit in terms of pollutant emission and/or concentration reduction 

 the timescale for implementation 

 how progress will be monitored 

NB: Please see future ASRs for regular annual updates on implementation of these 

measures 

Page 45



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  28 

Table 5.1 ‒ Air Quality Action Plan Measures 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

1 
Work within the 
structure of the 

planning system 
to reduce 

emissions of 
pollutants from 

new 
development.  

This will include 
implementing 

any new 
requirements for 
reducing PM2.5 

through planning 
which are likely 
to be in place 

within the 
timeframe of this 

plan 

Policy 
Guidance 

and 
Developme
nt Control 

Air Quality 
Planning 

and Policy 
Guidance 

2012 2032 SBC 
Environmental 
Health, SBC 
Development 

Planning, SBC 
Building 

Control, SCC 
Transport 
Strategic 
Transport 

Team 

Each 
department 

and 
organisation 
has officers 

in post 
funded by 

the 
respective 

Council 
budgets 

NO Fully 
funded 

£100k - 
£500k 

Implementat
ion 

Reduced 
vehicle 

emissions, 
heat and 
energy 
plant 

emissions 
and 

construction 
dust 

emissions. 

Measured 
concentration 

of NO2 at 
monitoring 
locations. 

Ongoing implementation 
through regulatory and 

planning and development 
functions.  

Required amount of EV 
charging is now stipulated 
in Part S of the Building 

Control Regulations 
(2022) – conditions no 

longer required.  
Both Spelthorne and SCC 
have new guidance with 

air quality benefits4. 
 

2023 Emerging Local 
Plan examination 

hearings are currently 
paused5.  

The Emerging Local 
Plan includes updated 

planning policy regarding 
air quality that will not be 
effective until the Plan is 

adopted.  
Planning conditions 
relating to air quality 
cannot be applied to 
some change of use 

applications and 
permitted developments. 

2 
Establishment of 

a Climate 
Change Working 

Group 

Policy 
Guidance 

and 
Developme
nt Control 

Air Quality 
Planning 

and Policy 
Guidance 

2021 2032 SBC SBC NO Funded - 
within 

staffing 
budgets 

n/a Implementat
ion 

Ultimate 
target is 

reductions 
in 

greenhouse 
gas 

emissions 

To promote 
sustainable 
transport 

amongst the 
staff.  

Support 
residents and 

Working Group meets 
every 2 months to track 

progress of actions. 
Establishing funding 

sources for projects to 
reduce emissions such as 
the Green Initiative Fund. 

The River Thames 
Scheme Development 

Consent Order is a 
project to create 

additional flood capacity 
along the River Thames 

in Spelthorne and 

                                            

 

4 Surrey County Council have updated the Vehicular, electric vehicle and cycle parking guidance for new developments which is now available online here:  https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and- transport/parking/strategy-and- 
guidance/development-parking-guidance. Spelthorne Borough Council have adopted a Supplementary Planning Document which is designed to complement planning policy regarding climate change and emissions reduction. Some of the 
measures within the document will have co benefits for air quality. 
5 2023 Emerging Local Plan examination hearings were suspended for 3 months at the request of Councillors. The examination was due to resume in September 2023 however Members voted to extend the pause in the examination 

timetable until the proposed changes to the National Planning Policy Framework were published in December 2023, before determining the next steps and taking legal advice to confirm the validity of the minister’s directive to intervene in the 
Local Plan process under section 27 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. On the 29th February 2024 the Spelthorne Environment and Sustainability Committee voted to propose to the Inspector to remove all Green Belt 
allocations from the Local Plan with the exception of the two allocations that meet the need for Gypsy, Traveller and Travelling Showpeople. The Committee resolved to propose to the Inspector to keep all proposed flood risk sites but 
remove those at high risk of flooding and move some higher risk sites to later in the Plan period (11-15 years) to allow the River Thames Scheme to be operational and effective, the design code to be completed, and subject to no resolution 
objection from the Environment Agency and to propose to the Inspector to withdraw the Staines Development Framework as a core document. These decisions will allow the resumption of examination of the Local Plan in due course, 
subject to consultation with the Inspector and the Environment Agency. 

P
age 46



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  29 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

which have 
associated 
air pollutant 
emissions 
reductions 

businesses to 
adopt clean 
vehicles and 
car-sharing. 
Promoting 
sustainable 

travel6.  
 

Introducing a Climate 
Change focussed 

Supplementary Planning 
Document7.   

Rolling out Carbon 
Literacy training for 

Councillors and Staff8 
Identifying synergies 

between achieving GHG 
emissions and reductions 
in air pollutant emissions. 
Spelthorne are an active 

participant in the 
Heathrow Strategic 

Planning Group,  a joint 
partnership of local 

authorities and Local 
Enterprise Partnerships 
(LEPS) responsible for 
planning the land use, 
transport, environment, 
economic development 

and sustainable 
development of the sub-

region surrounding 
Heathrow Airport. 

Spelthorne are also an 
active participant in the 

Council for the 
Independent Scrutiny of 

Heathrow Airport (CISHA), 
including within the Air 
Quality Working Group.  

neighbouring boroughs 
which is required due to 

climate change. The 
Environmental Health 
team are a regulatory 
consultee to this DCO 

and the DCO process is 
expected to take 

significant resource to 
respond to from the 

Pollution Control team, 
who manage the 

Councils LAQM duties.  
Actions are dependent 

on funding being 
available. 

3 
Update the 

Surrey-wide Air 
Quality 

Modelling which 
was completed 

in 2019 to 

Policy 
Guidance 

and 
Developme
nt Control 

Other 
policy 

2026 2027 SCC, Surrey 
Public Health 
and SBC (via 

Surrey Air 
Alliance) 

SCC, 
Surrey 
Public 

Health and 
SBC (via 

Possi
bly 

Not 
Funded 

£10-£50k 
(for 

Spelthorne) 

Planning N/A Receipt of 
updated 

Surrey-wide 
air quality 

modelling of  

No progress  Action depends on 
suitable traffic data being 
available from SCC and 
funding being available 
from SBC in a timely 

manner to join in with the 

                                            

 

6 including actively supporting improvements to public transport access to Heathrow and sustainable travel to school. 

7 SBC has sought advice from experts within the Association for Public Service Excellence in setting policy. 

8This training supported by the Carbon Literacy Trust requires participants to identify emission reduction actions that they will undertake as part of their role. As of March 2024, 86 employees have undertaken the training. 

P
age 47



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  30 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

incorporate up to 
date input data 

Surrey Air 
Alliance) 

NOx, PM10 
and PM2.5 

wider modelling 
exercise.  

At Spelthorne funding 
needs to clear 

Committee which is a 
long process compared 

with other Surrey 
Boroughs and can 

present challenges when 
joint working. 

4 
Lobby for, and 

support any 
future measures 

by Transport 
Authorities to 

encourage and 
facilitate the use 
of low emission 

buses in 
Spelthorne 

Promoting 
Low 

Emission 
Transport 

Public 
Vehicle 

Procurem
ent -

Prioritising 
uptake of 

low 
emission 
vehicles 

Ongoing Ongoing Spelthorne 
Borough 

Council, SCC,  
TfL 

Within staff 
resources 

for lobbying, 
funding 

sources for 
low 

emission 
buses 

unclear 

NO Not 
funded 

Unclear Planning Unclear at 
this stage 

Proportion of 
Low 

Emission 
Buses in 

Spelthorne 

Introduction of electric 
buses in Sunbury (235 & 

290) on both London 
United routes.  First bus9 

are ISO 14001@2015 
certified for Environmental 

Management and are 
committed to achieve a 

100% zero emission bus 
fleet by 2035.  TFL 

requires buses on its 
routes to comply with the 

LEZ including via 
retrofitting older vehicles. 

SCC Bus Service 
Improvement Plan outlines 
improvements required to 

increase patronage, 
reliability, journey speed 

and customer satisfaction. 

Funding.  Bus 
companies have no 

requirement to upgrade 
fleet, so will require 

collaborative working.  
Charging is also a 

challenge. 

5 
Develop a Green 

Infrastructure 
strategy to 
support the 
Local Plan 

Policy 
Guidance 

and 
Developme
nt Control 

Other 
policy 

2024 2024 Senior 
Strategic 
Planning 

Officer/CCT 

  NO       Very difficult 
to quantify 

Delivery of 
Green 

Infrastructure 
Strategy 

Some consultant work 
being carried out by APSE 
Plans to develop in 2024. 

 

                                            

 

9 who currently operate the number 8 route through Staines to Slough 

P
age 48



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  31 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

6 
Promote access 
to grant funding 
for renewable 

energy 
installations for 

residents 
including Solar 

Together 

Promoting 
Low 

Emission 
Plant 

Emission 
control 

equipment 
for small 

and 
medium 

sized 
stationary 
combustio
n sources 

/ 
replaceme

nt of 
combustio
n sources 

Ongoing Ongoing SCC Solar 
Together 

NO Funded £10-£50k 
(for 

Spelthorne) 
for 

implementat
ion of any 

future 
scheme 

Implementat
ion 

Households 
with solar 
energy are 

likely to 
utilise 

generated 
electricity 

for heating 
the home, 
which can 

reduce 
boiler and 
domestic 
solid fuel 
burning 

emissions.  
Very difficult 
to quantify 

Households 
joining the 

Solar 
Together 
scheme. 

Solar Together Surrey is a 
group-buying scheme that 
leverages homeowners’ 

collective purchasing 
power to access quality 

installations of solar 
photovoltaic (PV) panels 
at discounted prices10.  

 
Phase 2 of Solar Together 
Surrey launched in 2023 
and is managed by SCC 

in partnership with 
independent experts, 

iChoosr, who will 
administer and deliver the 
scheme. The scheme is 
currently closed to new 

applications at the present 
time11.  

This relies on 
homeowners to sign up 

for the scheme. 

7 
Incorporate 

energy efficiency 
measures and 

renewables into 
conversions, 

refurbishments, 
and 

maintenance of 
Council buildings 

and housing 
developments 

Promoting 
Low 

Emission 
Plant 

Low 
Emission 
Fuels for 
stationary 

and 
mobile 

sources in 
Public 

Procurem
ent 

Ongoing ongoing SBC 
(Assets/Faciliti

es/CCT) 

 Public 
Sector  

Low Carbon  
Skills Fund 

NO Partially 
Funded 

>£10 million Implementat
ion 

Difficult to 
quantify in 
terms of 
local air 
pollutant 

emissions 

Delivery of 
specific 
Council 
building 

schemes - 
Knowle 

Green Office 
LED lighting 

upgrade.  
Increase in 
EPC ratings 

Solar PV now on all 3 
main operational 

buildings.  Knowle Green 
Office in line for LED 

lighting upgrade.   
Subject to budgets there 

are plans to increase EPC 
ratings12.     

SBC has been awarded 
£994,883 by the 

Government and Sport 
England to decarbonise 
Sunbury Leisure Centre 

by adding solar panels to 
the roof and replacing the 
old gas boilers with heat 
pumps. Gas usage at the 

Budget 

                                            

 

10 The more people that participate, the better the price that can be secured and the more renewable energy generated by Surrey residents. Participants receive support throughout the process, with clear and objective communication at 

every stage. The offer is a complete solar PV system, including survey, installation, monitoring and warranties. Additionally, the scheme only collaborates with certified solar PV installers to ensure high-quality installations with insurance-

backed guarantees. 

11 The 1st Phase in 2021 featured approximately 1,400 installations, with 5.6MW of installed capacity. This will deliver over 28,000 tonnes of carbon savings over 25 years. 

12 Have completed 98% of EPC surveys for all council sites against requirements of the Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards.  

P
age 49

https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21695/Sunbury-Leisure-Centre-receives-funding-boost
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21695/Sunbury-Leisure-Centre-receives-funding-boost
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21695/Sunbury-Leisure-Centre-receives-funding-boost
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21695/Sunbury-Leisure-Centre-receives-funding-boost


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  32 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

centre will be reduced to 
zero as a result of the 

work.  

8 
Converting 50% 
of the Council 
fleet to electric 
or hydrogen by 
2028 as stated 

in SBC's 
response to the 

Climate 
Emergency 

Promoting 
Low 

Emission 
Transport 

Company 
Vehicle 

Procurem
ent - 

Prioritising 
uptake of 

low 
emission 
vehicles 

Ongoing 2029 SBC(Neighbou
rs Services/ 

CCT) 

From 
Council 
budget 

(currently 
no other 
potential 

sources of 
funding) 

NO Partially 
Funded 

£500k-£1 
million for 
vehicles 

plus £300k 
to £400k for 
infrastructur

e in the 
depot to 

increase the 
power 
supply 

Implementat
ion 

Difficult to 
quantify in 
terms of 

overall local 
air pollutant 
emissions 

50% of the 
Council fleet 
to electric or 
hydrogen by 

2028 

In 2023 the Council took 
on an electric minibus as 

one of the Spelride service 
vehicles that provide 
community transport 

services in Spelthorne.  
2 EV pool cars, 2 EV 

vans, 2 EV mopeds are 
already utilised in the SBC 

fleet. 

There are some 
challenges in replacing 
some specialist Council 
vehicles such as refuse 
trucks, the Council has 
trialled electric vehicles 

and unfortunately 
experienced reliability 
issues to date.  Also 

funding issues for EVs. 
Power supply to depot 

locations requires 
upgrading to facilitate 

adequate charging 
facilities. 

9 
To investigate 

the feasibility of 
producing 

annual 
emissions data 
for the Councils 
fleet vehicles in 

line with the 
Council’s 

Climate Change 
Strategy  

Promoting 
Low 

Emission 
Transport 

Other Ongoing  Early 
2024 

Pollution 
Control/ 

Neighbourhood 
Services/CCT/ 

SCC 

From 
Council 
budget 

NO Partially 
Funded 

£35k per 
annum 

Planning Emissions 
savings will 

be 
quantified 

No KPI set 
currently 

A pilot study of the 
baseline emissions for the 
refuse vehicles in the fleet 
was undertaken in 2023 

by the Surrey Environment 
Partnership.  

Weekly mileage data is 
collected by 

Neighbourhood Services 
which could be used for 

further studies.  

Funding. 

10 
Investigate the 

feasibility of 
introducing 

emissions-based 
parking tariffs 

Promoting 
Low 

Emission 
Transport 

Priority 
parking for 

LEV's 

2025 (for 
feasibility) 

2026 Spelthorne 
Borough 

Council/ SCC 

  NO Not 
funded 

£10-£50K Planning n/a for 
feasibility 

work 

Feasibility 
study 

complete 

No progress to date Funding, staff resource.  
SBC can no longer 
enforce on street 
parking.  Potential 

barrier to implementation 
of Equalities and 

Diversity. 

11 
Promote the use 

of “cleaner 
technology and 

fuels” within 
Spelthorne 

Promoting 
Low 

Emission 
Transport 

Procuring 
alternative 
Refuelling 
infrastruct

ure to 
promote 

Low 
Emission 
Vehicles, 

EV 
recharging
, Gas fuel 
recharging 

2019 2025 SCC and SBC 
(via Surrey Air 

Alliance), 
planning 

applicants and 
developers 

Enterprise 
M3 Local 
Enterprise 
Partnership 

& SBC 
(including 
S.106), 

Developers 
via the 

Planning 
regime, 

ORCS and 
LEVI 

NO Partially 
Funded 

- Implementat
ion 

A reduction 
in NOx 

pollution 
from traffic 
through the 
uptake of 

low 
emission 
vehicles 

and 
reduced 

private car 
ownership 

Suitable 
Charging 
Locations 
identified, 

and Preferred 
Supplier 
selected. 

Provision of 
car club 

vehicles at 
new 

development
s in 

Location suggestions for 
EV chargers were 

submitted to a 
consultation run by SCC 

which suggested 82 
locations in Spelthorne, 45 

on street, 37 off- street. 
These are being used to 
guide the installation of 

further phases.  Ten 
charge points have 

installed as part of Phase 

Future developments in 
Staines-upon-Thames 

may present an 
opportunity to fund and 

introduce improvements.  
There is not suitable 

SBC owned land in the 
area of the Borough 
closest to Heathrow 
Airport and Stanwell 

Moor Road where the 
2022 NO2 exceedance 

occurred to facilitate off -

P
age 50

https://surreyev.commonplace.is/


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  33 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

funding for 
charge 
points 

Spelthorne.  
Number of 

charge points 
delivered. 

1 of the Joint Project with 
SCC.  

In 2023, SBC produced an 
EV infrastructure strategy.  

Planning applicants are 
asked to commit to electric 
car clubs through agreed 

planning conditions. A 
working group is being 

established to investigate 
the provision of Rapid 

Charging Hubs in 
Spelthorne. On-street EV 

trial with SCC. 
SBC are investigating the 
business case feasibility of 

providing initial EV rapid 
hub charging to two 

Council owned car parks. 
SCC has established a 
contract with Connected 

Kerb to deliver EV charge 
points between now and 

2030. 

road charging.  
Increasing on road 

charging facilities in that 
area requires resource 

from SCC. 

12 
Deliver EV taxi 
programme to 
encourage taxi 
companies and 
drivers to invest 
in electric fleets 

Promoting 
Low 

Emission 
Transport 

Taxi 
emission 
incentives 

2020 2026 SBC (CCT) Pilot 
scheme 
funding 

from 
DEFRA via 

a joint 
project with 

YES Partially 
Funded 

£100k - 
£500k 

Planning A reduction 
in NOx and 
particulate 
pollution 
from taxi 

and private 

Increased 
number of 

licensed EV 
taxi and 

private hire 
vehicles. 

SBC amended the taxi 
and private hire vehicle 

licencing policy to 
accommodate fully electric 

vehicles in 2022. The 
policy was also amended 
to allow electric London 

Lack of legal resource in 
local authorities to 

support the procurement 
process has led to 
repeated delays13. 

                                            

 

13 The project was delayed by the impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic upon the taxi and private hire trade and suppliers. Further delays were caused by changes to state subsidy control legislation which required a legal opinion and further 

Defra approval. Defra approval to continue was granted in March 2023. By this time, the match funding source LoCase had expired. New match funding has been allocated however it is less finance than originally committed (although still 

meeting the criteria of the original grant) therefore further approval to continue was sought from Defra. Approval to continue with the project was given in Autumn 2023. SCC were unable to provide the services to the project that were 

originally committed, due to additional funds being required to resource the legal and procurement work needed to start the project procurement, therefore the feasibility of transferring these responsibilities to Guildford Borough Council to 

deliver it as a project partner is being explored. 

P
age 51



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  34 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

the Surrey 
Air Alliance. 

Match 
funding 

from SCC 
and a small 
contribution 

from 
Environmen

tal Health 
budget at 

some of the 
participating 

Local 
Authorities 

hire 
vehicles. 

Style cabs or those with 
Euro 6 standard engines 

to operate in Spelthorne to 
improve accessibility of 
the taxi fleet for disabled 

customers.   

13 
Supporting air 

quality research 
and providing 

public 
information 

regarding air  
quality, including 

an air alert for 
vulnerable 

members of the 
population 

Public 
Information 

Other 2021 2023 2029 Spelthorne 
Borough 

Council, Surrey 
Air Alliance 

and CISHA Air 
Quality 

Working Group 

Project 
dependant 

NO Not 
Funded 

- Implementat
ion 

Input to air 
quality 
related 

research 

Data 
available to 
the Council 
and other 
parties in 
projects 

Initial project completed 
August 202214  

The Council's Pollution 
Control Team have in 

2023 and 2024 hosted the 
Environmental Diagnosis 

and Management Masters 
students from Royal 

Holloway University to 
share knowledge about 

Local Air Quality 
Management and air 
quality monitoring15.  

Through membership of 
CISHA Air Quality 

Working Group SBC are 
helping to facilitate 

Maintaining a 
collaborative relationship 
with the local University 
helps to train future air 

quality professionals and 
scientists, whilst 

enhancing knowledge 
about local air quality. 

 
Provision of air quality 
alerts is reliant on the 

funding of the service by 
multiple Surrey districts 
and boroughs, and the 
provision on offer by 

service providers. It is 
expected that a new 

                                            

 

14 Initial project completed August 2022 co- supervising a student from the Earth Science Department at Royal Holloway University of London. The student project provided mobile vehicle and buggy mounted spot measurements of NO2, CO2 

and methane around the borough. 

15 This is to encourage interest in this specialist area of work and associated research. The students then undertake their own monitoring study facilitated by the University having visited both diffusion tube and automatic analyser locations in 

Spelthorne. 

P
age 52



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  35 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

research into local air 
quality and air quality in 
relation to aviation and 

related sources of 
emissions16.   

The Surrey Air Alliance 
have produced online 

materials regarding wood 
burning stove emissions 

and SBC have run 
information campaigns 

regarding domestic 
burning and engine idling.    
SBC will keep up to date 

with emerging 
technologies such as 

hydrogen as a fuel source. 
SBC will continue to 

provide an air quality alert 
service that residents can 

sign up to aimed at 
residents with health 
conditions that are 

affected by episodes of 
poor air quality.  

provider may be required 
for autumn 2024.  

14 
Continue to 

lobby at national 
/regional level 

for the legislation 
changes needed 
and on the big 

strategic 
infrastructure 

decisions such 
as Heathrow 
Airport’s third 
runway and 

changes to the 
regulation and 

operation of UK 
airspace 

Public 
Information 

Other Ongoing  Ongoing MAT/SCC Within 
staffing 
budgets 

(staff time 
only) 

NO Funded 
(staff 
time 
only) 

<£10K Implementat
ion 

Will depend 
on specific 
proposals, 

but potential 
for sizeable 

emission 
reductions 
in the long 

term 

n/a SBC is active on HSPG 
Environment Group 

Competing resource 
priorities 

                                            

 

16 Spelthorne have facilitated a meeting between the CISHA Air Quality Working Group Chair and a local university in autumn 2023 to explore potential synergies in areas of research interest. 

P
age 53

https://airalert.info/Surrey/Forecast.aspx?county=Spelthorne
https://airalert.info/Surrey/Forecast.aspx?county=Spelthorne


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  36 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

15 
Raising 

awareness of 
poor air quality 

and the 
associated 

health 
implications.  

NHS Ask About 
Asthma 

campaign. 
 

Engaging with 
the charity and 
voluntary sector 
to align efforts 
on tackling the 

climate 
emergency and 

improving air 
quality. 

Public 
Information 

Via other 
mechanis

ms 

2022 2025 Surrey and 
Heartlands 
Health and 

Care 
partnership, 

SCC and SBC 
(via the Surrey 

Air Alliance) 

NHS and 
Spelthorne 
Borough 
Council 

NO Funded - Implementat
ion 

n/a - 
measure 

about 
reducing 
exposure 

not 
reducing 

emissions 

Training of 
healthcare 

professionals 
including 
GPs and 

Pharmacists 
 

Support of 
Clean Air 
Day and 
Clean Air 

Night 
established 

by the charity 
Global Action 

Plan 

Ask About Asthma 
initiative: Surrey 

Heartlands Health and 
Care Partnership have 

worked with the Surrey Air 
Alliance to understand 

where there are schools 
located in areas of 

potential poor air quality 
and to understand how the 
air pollution forecasts can 

help asthma patients 
prepare for deteriorating 
air quality to help best 
manage their health 

condition.   
Healthy Surrey have 
produced an online 

asthma toolkit which gives 
advice for parent/carers, 

schools, and medical 
professionals.  

In June 2023 SBC 
attended NHS training to 
provide information about 

air pollution alert 
services17.  

SBC supports Clean Air 
Day and Clean Air Night, a 
bid has been made to the 
Defra Air Quality Fund by 
Surrey Trading Standards 
and the Surrey Air Alliance 
in cooperation with a wider 
group of Local Authorities 

The project has 
highlighted that 

rehousing requirements 
do not capture 

individuals who have 
respiratory conditions 

very well.  
Due to the common 

nature of asthma as a 
health condition it would 

not be possible to 
rehouse patients to new 
accommodation in areas 

of better air quality in 
Surrey.  

Overcrowding 
assessments cannot 

consider health 
conditions and that can 

be a challenge in making 
a case for changing a 
family’s housing when 
there may be a health 

need to do so.  
The NHS funding is of a 
limited timescale but the 

project will leave a 
legacy of online 

resources and staff 
training.  

The Surrey Public Health 
and Environmental 
Health Teams will 

continue to share data 
and work with Surrey 

                                            

 

17 The Spelthorne Principal Pollution Control Officer attended a training event held by Surrey Heartlands for NHS staff, school nurses and pharmacists to improve outcomes of children and young people with asthma. The Officer was in 

attendance on behalf of the Surrey Air Alliance to provide information about air pollution alert services and the Defra Air Quality Index forecasts to the attending medical professionals. 

P
age 54

https://www.transformationpartners.nhs.uk/programmes/children-young-people/asthma/ask-about-asthma-2023/
https://www.healthysurrey.org.uk/children-and-families/asthma-toolkit
https://www.healthysurrey.org.uk/children-and-families/asthma-toolkit


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  37 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

for funding to carry out 
activities to promote Clean 

Air Night more widely18.  

Heartlands Health and 
Care Partnership via the 

Surrey Air Alliance 

16 
Implement 

further Liveable 
Neighbourhoods

, or similar 
schemes 

Traffic 
Manageme

nt 

Strategic 
highway 

improvem
ents, Re-
prioritising 

Road 
space 

away from 
cars, 

including 
Access 

managem
ent, 

Selective 
vehicle 
priority, 

bus 
priority, 

high 
vehicle 

occupancy 
lane 

2022 Ongoing SCC, 
Spelthorne 
Borough 
Council 

SCC NO Partially 
Funded 

- Planning Very difficult 
to quantify 
as will be 

dependent 
on specific 
scheme - 

will reduce 
emissions 
where a 

modal shift 
to active 
travel is 

successful.  

Improved 
public health 
indicators, 
improved 

facilities for 
walking and 

cycling 

Tranche 1A is the first 
batch of Liveable 

Neighbourhoods zone 
proposals. There are 27 
Liveable Neighbourhood 

Zones across SBC19.  

Currently at the design 
stage. Subject to funding 

bids and allocations. 
Perception that people 
need to drive further. 

17 
Junction 

improvements to 
increase 

capacity and 
improve road 

Transport 
Planning 

and 
Infrastructur

e 

Other 2020 2025 SCC, planning 
applicants and 

developers 

Developers 
via the 

Planning 
regime 

NO Funded £500k - £1 
million 

Implementat
ion 

Very difficult 
to quantify 

as 
dependent 
on specific 

Reduced 
congestion 
on Borough 

roads 
reduced 

Shepperton Studios: two 
junctions have been 

completed, with another 
junction improvement in 

progress (due for 

There are a number of 
concurrent roadworks 
taking place in SBC 

which collectively cause 
temporary traffic 

                                            

 

18 The first Clean Air Night took place in January 2024 with a social media campaign focus on educating the public on wood and solid fuel burning and the associated pollution and harm to health that this activity creates, the Surrey Air 

Alliance in collaboration with the SCC Public Health and Trading Standards teams were a sponsor of the event having engaged directly with Global Action Plan on raising awareness of this issue. 

19 Sunbury Cross is a priority area covered by Liveable Neighbourhood Zone SP7, SP6 and SP1 and a Local Cycling and Walking Plan Phase 1 Core Walking Zone and Phase 1 Cycle Route. There are 27 Liveable Neighbourhood Zones 

across Sunbury-on-Thames,  Staines-upon-Thames, Shepperton and Stanwell, 3 Local Cycling and Walking Plan Phase 1 Core Walking Zones, and a Cycle Routes extending from Sunbury on Thames Green Street and Nursery Road 

through Sunbury Cross, along the A308 to Ashford Hospital and Laleham with routes extending into Staines-upon-Thames.  West Sunbury Local Street Improvements currently being consulted  

P
age 55

https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/policies-plans-consultations/transport-plan/policy-areas/planning-for-place
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/policies-plans-consultations/transport-plan/policy-areas/planning-for-place
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/roadworks-and-maintenance/roadworks
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/roadworks-and-maintenance/roadworks
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/roadworks-and-maintenance/roadworks
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21674/West-Sunbury-improvements


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  38 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

layouts linked to 
new 

developments 

scheme - 
will reduce 
emissions 
where a 

modal shift 
to active 
travel is 

successful.  

journey 
times, 

reduced 
emissions 

completion August 2024). 
Another 4 junction 

improvements are planned 
with all due to be 

completed by September 
2026. 

congestion, longer 
journey times, and  

interrupt public transport 
such as bus routes.  

18 
Promoting 
Alternative 

Travel – Delivery 
of bus priority 

measures, cycle 
parking and 
interchange 
opportunities 

Transport 
Planning 

and 
Infrastructur

e 

Public 
transport 
improvem

ents-
interchang
es stations 

and 
services 

2016 2030 SCC SCC NO Partially 
Funded 

- Planning Very difficult 
to quantify 

as 
dependent 
on specific 
scheme - 

will reduce 
emissions 
where a 

modal shift 
to active 
travel or 
public 

transport is 
successful.  

Increased 
uptake in 

public 
transport 

journeys, and 
cycle 

journeys 

SCC have a dedicated 
webpage summarising the 
travel discounts available 

in Surrey  
Some attractions in Surrey 
offer admission discounts 

when travelling to the 
attraction with an eligible 

bus ticket20  
The SCC webpage lists 
the bus operators who 

allow free bus pass 
holders to travel before 
9.30am and the London 
Bus Services which are 

cashless and accept 
Oyster. Includes several 

services that route through 
Spelthorne including 

Public transport by rail 
and bus remains costly 
in SBC when compared 

with neighbouring 
London Boroughs22.   

Connectivity by public 
transport to common 
places of work across 

Surrey is poor23.  
To date the campaign to 
get Spelthorne included 

in transport zone 6 which 
would substantially 

reduce public transport 
fares and allow the 

implementation of the 
Oyster scheme on rail in 

                                            

 

20 Including: Winkworth Arboretum, Claremont Landscape Gardens, RHS Gardens Wisley, National Trust Hatchlands Park and Waverley Abbey.   

22 There is limited control over public transport fares for local authorities. SCC can only influence services that are subsidised but by the nature of requiring that support these routes are more economically challenging to operate. Return 

tickets for local journeys and to access rail services do not offer value for money for family travel , even when accounting for parking costs. This makes it challenging to encourage residents and businesses to utilise public transport over car 

travel. 

23 For example to Woking and Guildford from Spelthorne, and to destinations outside of Surrey such as Basingstoke and employment areas in West London. Where bus routes are in place services are often infrequent and on very long 

routes that can be subject to delays, for example travel from Staines to Woking by bus takes over 1 hour whereas by car it takes 30 minutes. Connectivity to hospitals outside the borough by public transport is also poor with 1 service an 

hour to St Peters Hospital 

P
age 56

https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/buses-and-other-transport/tickets-and-discounts
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/buses-and-other-transport/tickets-and-discounts


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  39 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

notably some services 
between Ashford Hospital 

and Staines-upon-
Thames.  

SBC Local Cycling and 
Walking Infrastructure 

Plan (LCWIP) has been 
produced21.  

Spelthorne has not yet 
been successful24.  

Car parking charges 
have to achieve a 

balance of providing 
economic activity in the 
town centres which are 

recovering from the 
economic impacts of the 

Covid-19 pandemic 
balanced with the need 
to improve air quality 
and reduce carbon 

emissions in line with the 
climate emergency25.  

19 
The Council will 

work with 
Knowle Green 

Estate and 
suppliers to 

promote retrofit, 
insulation, 

energy efficiency 
and adaptation 

measures 

Promoting 
Low 

Emission 
Plant 

Shift to 
installation

s using 
low 

emission 
fuels for 

stationary 
and 

mobile 
sources 

  2027 Housing/CCO/ 
Knowle Green 

Estates 

Social 
Housing 

Decarbonis
ation Fund 

No           Potential for working with 
Surrey CC on joint bid in 

the future.  
Meeting with A2 Dominion 
(Q4, 2023) highlighted the 

importance of work 
needed on social housing.  

Would need buy in and 
support from A2 

Dominion, the social 
housing provider. 

50% match funding 
requirement .  The 

council does not own 
any housing directly. 

20 
To investigate 

the feasibility of 
introducing Air 

Policy 
Guidance 

and 

Air Quality 
Planning 

2025 (for 
feasibility) 

2026 Spelthorne 
Borough 
Council 

Unclear - 
potentially 
planning 

No Not 
Funded 

£10-50K 
(including 

Planning Unquantifia
ble, but any 
emissions 

Increased 
consistency 

No progress  Resourcing.  Co-
ordination in with Local 
Plan update/ process. 

                                            

 

21 This is a key transport planning document that has been defined by the Department for Transport (DfT), which aims to support recent uptakes in the active travel modes of walking and cycling by delivering improved facilities for existing 

active users whilst also encouraging a mode shift for new users. The key outputs for an LCWIP are network plans for key walking and cycle corridors and a prioritised programme of infrastructure improvements at concept design stage. 

24 SBC are supportive of this campaign, as is the current Spelthorne MP. SBC wrote to SCC and the Department for Transport regarding the need for lower cost public transport and better public transport connectivity with west London 

employment areas and Heathrow in line with neighbouring London Boroughs, in light of the London Ultra Low Emission Zone extension. The Department for Transport, and Transport for London did not accommodate this measure which 

would have provided some mitigation for the impacts of the ULEZ on residents as well as securing further emissions improvements. 

25 Some car parks are privately owned. Currently a flat rate charge of £2 applies to Sunday car parking in certain car parks in Staines-upon-Thames which is popular with families and sustains custom for the local businesses. 

P
age 57



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  40 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

Quality 
Supplementary 

Planning 
Guidance 

Developme
nt Control 

and Policy 
Guidance 

budgets if 
professional 
services are 
required to 
deliver the 
measure. 

internal staff 
time) 

reduction 
will be long 

term 

in air quality 
assessments 

21 
Increase 

Spelthorne 
Smoke Control 
Area to cover 

the whole 
borough 

Policy 
Guidance 

and 
Developme
nt Control 

Other 
policy 

2025 2026 Spelthorne 
Borough 
Council 

Unclear - 
within 

staffing 
budgets 

Poten
tial 
for 

grant 
fundi
ng 

Not 
Funded 

<£10K Planning Unquantifia
ble, likely to 
have more 

effect in 
raising 

awareness 
of effects of 

solid fuel 
burning 

Order 
approved for 

whole 
borough SCA 

Officers will attend a Defra 
workshop giving updated 
advice on implementing 

new Smoke Control 
Areas. This was 

scheduled for March 2024 
but has been cancelled, 
Officers will attend when 

the workshop is 
rescheduled.  

Requires Committee 
approval and a public 
consultation exercise.  

22 
To continue to 

fund a 
comprehensive 

air quality 
monitoring 

network 
including 
automatic 

monitoring of 
PM10 and PM2.5. 

Public 
Information 

Other Ongoing 2029 (ie to 
the end of 
the plan 

and 
beyond) 

SBC Council 
budgets26, 
Have used 
Defra grant 
funding for 

sensors 

Yes 
(histo
rically

) 

Funded 
on 

annual 
basis 

£10-50K Implementat
ion 

n/a Annual 
Reporting of 
monitoring 

Data through 
the ASR 

Monitors in place.  
Expansion of network will 
be considered to include 

some riverside monitoring 
to consider River 

Transport. 

Funding, staff resource, 
H&S training for 

monitoring sites close to 
the river. 

23 
Refresh bonfires 

and anti-idling 
campaign.  

Public 
Information 

Other 2024 2026 SBC SBC No Not 
funded 

<£10K Planning Will reduce 
PM, rather 
than NOx 

Reduction in 
complaints of 

bonfires / 
idling 

Complaints regarding 
bonfires and idling 

increased post-COVID. 
Council cannot ban 

bonfires, but can enforce 
when statutory nuisance is 
demonstrated. Increased 

public awareness that 
bonfires and idling cause 

nuisance and 
unnecessary emissions 

  

                                            

 

26 Heathrow independently fund the automatic site at Oaks Road, Stanwell.   

P
age 58



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  41 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

may help to reduce the 
incidence. 

24 
Continue to 
implement 
Cycling for 

Health 

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 

Promotion 
of cycling 

2016 2032 SBC and SCC SBC NO Funded <£10K Implementat
ion 

Very difficult 
to quantify 

but will 
reduce 

emissions 
where a 

modal shift 
to active 
travel is 

successful.  

Increased 
uptake in 

active travel 
and local 
leisure 

opportunities 

Scheme in operation with 
regular guided cycle rides 
and route suggestions for 

independent rides27. In 
2023 there were 123 

attendees across 33 rides.  
SBC are establishing a 

Coordinated Approach to 
Cycling Officer group led 
by the Leisure Service 
Team to support and 

promote cycling facilities 
within the borough. This 
initiative includes joint 

working with SCC and a 
community group Talking 
Tree, both of which are 

currently running schemes 
in Spelthorne to 

encourage reconditioning 
of bicycles. SCC have 

arrangements for 
reconditioned bicycles to 
be sold at low cost in the 

re-use shop at the 
Community Recycling 

Centre.  

Cycling for Health is an 
established volunteer led 
scheme which depends 
on the community kindly 
giving their time to run 
the guided cycle rides. 

The River Thames Flood 
Relief Scheme, should 

the Development 
Consent Order be 

granted and the scheme 
constructed will include 
extensive new active 
travel infrastructure 

including potentially 2 
new non vehicle 

crossings over the River 
Thames into 

neighbouring boroughs.  
Cycle storage difficulties 
present a barrier to the 

uptake of cycle 
ownership. This is a 
challenge to address 

both via planning policy 
for new developments, 

and in supporting 
storage provision more 
widely in the borough.  

25 
Bikeability 

School Cycling 
Proficiency 

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 

Promotion 
of cycling 

2012 2032 SCC SCC NO Funded - Implementat
ion 

Very difficult 
to quantify 

but will 

Increased 
uptake in 
cycle and 

SCC offers subsidised 
Bikeability cycle training to 
all year 2, year 5 and year 

Charged for service paid 
for by school or 
parents/carers30.  

                                            

 

27 There are around 41km of cycle facility in Spelthorne – cycle paths, cycle lanes and advisory routes. 

30 Details of how schools can request training can be found here 

P
age 59

https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-safety/schools/primary/cycle-training


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  42 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

training and Feet 
First  Walking 

Training 

reduce 
emissions 
where a 

modal shift 
to active 
travel is 

successful.  

walking 
journeys 
made to 
schools 

6 pupils in the Borough 
and also offers 

customised cycle training 
for all ages28.  

Walking Instructors have 
taught nearly 5,100 

primary school pupils in 
nearly 90 schools across 
the county in the 2022/23 

academic year29.  

26 
Continue to 
implement 
Walking for 

Health 

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 

Promotion 
of walking 

2016 2032 SBC and SCC Spelthorne 
Borough 
Council 

NO Funded - Implementat
ion 

Very difficult 
to quantify 

but will 
reduce 

emissions 
where a 

modal shift 
to active 
travel is 

successful.  

Increased 
uptake in 

active travel 
and local 
leisure 

opportunities 

The Spelthorne Walking 
for Health Scheme, 
supported by The 

Ramblers Association, has 
run for 17 years31.  

SBC has substantial 
length of Thames Path 
which passes through 
scenic areas and is 

suitable for walking and 
cycling. There is also a 

large Site of Special 
Scientific Interest at 
Staines Moor which 

includes walking paths 
and linkages to the South 
West London Waterbodies 

Special Protection Area 
and the wider Colne 

Valley Regional Park.  

Volunteer led scheme 
which depends on the 

community kindly giving 
their time to run the 

guided walks. 
The River Thames Flood 
Relief Scheme, should 

the Development 
Consent Order be 

granted and the scheme 
constructed will include 
extensive new active 
travel infrastructure 

including potentially 2 
new non vehicle 

crossings over the River 
Thames into 

neighbouring boroughs.  

27 
Continue to 
implement 
School and 

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 

School 
Travel 
Plans 

2012 2032 SCC SCC 
Greener  

Futures and 

NO Funded - Implementat
ion 

Reduce 
NOx and 

PM2.5 

100% of 
schools to 

SCC are supporting 
schools to reduce their 

emissions through 3 

Most schools opt to use 
the funding via the 
Memorandum of 

                                            

 

28 Across Surrey 4,500 pupils have been trained at Bikeability Level 1 (Year 4, 8-9- year-olds) and 6,100 pupils at Bikeability Level 2 (Year 6, 10-11-year-olds) in the 2022/23 academic year. 

29 Next academic year, 40 schools have booked Feet First: Walking Training across Surrey. 

31 Walks are at least three times per week and average 20 participants per walk. In 2023 there were 280 attendees across 143 walks. 

P
age 60

https://www.colnevalleypark.org.uk/locations/staines-moor/
https://www.colnevalleypark.org.uk/locations/staines-moor/
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-safety/schools/primary/cycle-training
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-safety/schools/primary/cycle-training
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-safety/schools/primary/cycle-training


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  43 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

Business Travel 
Plans 

the Surrey 
Air Alliance 

emissions 
and traffic 
congestion 
from school 

related 
journeys.  

Very difficult 
to quantify 

but will 
reduce 

emissions 
where a 

modal shift 
to active 
travel is 

successful.  

implement 
travel plans 

schemes.  
The Eco Schools Green 
Flag scheme32, the Mode 

Shift Stars Travel Plan 
scheme33 and Lets Go 

Zero34.  
Schools sign up to a 

Memorandum of 
Understanding to get 

funding to implement a 
Mode Shift Stars Travel 
Plan or an Eco Schools 

Green Flag35.  
The SCC Safer Travel 

Team have completed 170 
site assessments of Road 
Safety Outside Schools. In 

2022, £3 million was 
assigned by SCC to 
deliver infrastructural 
improvements outside 

schools in Surrey, with the 
aim to install new 

infrastructure outside 50 
schools over the next 3 

years.  

Understanding to 
improve scooter and 

cycle parking facilities for 
the pupils.  Engagement 
with private schools has 
improved compared with 

prior to the pandemic. 
Private schools can have 

very large catchment 
areas for pupils 

                                            

 

32 Across Surrey there are 88 Green Flag Eco-Schools with 232 schools involved with the program.   

33 There are 69 accredited Modeshift STARS Travel Plans in place for schools across Surrey. There are four schools in Spelthorne with accreditations, Ashford Park Primary School, Hawkedale Primary School, St Ignatius Catholic Primary 

School, and Town Farm Primary School. 

34 Currently 3 schools in Spelthorne are signed up to the Let’s Go Zero Surrey scheme. 

35 Initial work with schools was Defra funded from the Air Quality Fund, this has developed into a larger programme led by the SCC Safer Travel Team. Digital materials from the original grant funded programme are made available to 

schools in Surrey.   

P
age 61

https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-safety/schools/primary/cycle-training


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  44 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

28 
Support work on 
the Health and 

Wellbeing 
Strategy 

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 

Intensive 
active 
travel 

campaign 
& 

infrastruct
ure 

2020 2032 SCC and SBC SCC and 
SBC 

NO Funded £100k - 
£500k 

Implementat
ion 

Reduce 
NOx and 

PM2.5 

emissions 
from traffic.  
Very difficult 
to quantify 

but will 
reduce 

emissions 
where a 

modal shift 
to active 
travel is 

successful.  

n/a The Spelthorne Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy 
2022 to 2027 has been 
adopted by Members at 

Committee.  Active travel 
will be encouraged to 

support people’s physical 
health but also positively 
contribute to reducing air 

pollution36 
SCCs Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy 
includes a commitment 

that the benefits of healthy 
environments for people 

are valued and maximised 
(including through 
transport/land use 

planning) and to support 
people to reach their 

potential by addressing 
the wider determinants of 

health. Progress is tracked 
37 

  

29 
Continue to 

promote 
sustainable 
transport/ 

homeworking 
with staff to 

reduce travel 
and explore 

schemes 
offering Council 

employees 
alternatives to 
private vehicle 

use  

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 

Encourag
e / 

Facilitate 
home-

working 

Ongoing Ongoing  SBC 
(Neighbours 

Services/ 
CCT) 

within 
Council 
budgets 

NO Not 
funded  

£10K-£50K Implemente
d  

  Proportion of 
trips to work 

for SBC 
employees 
by private 

vehicle 

Hybrid Working Policy 
which supports a degree 

of home working is in 
place, a salary sacrifice 

scheme for EVs and 
bicycles already in place.  

SBC provide Carbon 
Literacy Training which 
encourages staff and 

Councillors to consider 
their emissions and travel 
as an aspect of that. The 

electric pool vehicles 
including cars and bikes 

are promoted to staff 

 Additional work needed 
on exploring schemes 

offering Council 
employees incentives to 
avoid car use, and other 

alternatives to flying 
such as Climate Perks.  

Numerous carbon 
literacy pledges have 
included a change to 
travelling to work via 

active travel.  

                                            

 

36 . Air pollution related mortality is recognised within the strategy as a local challenge and the strategy notes the importance of local cycling and walking infrastructure in improving health and wellbeing. 

37 Current progress includes work on a design and feasibility study partially funded by the SBC Greener Initiatives Fund, which aims to set out more detailed proposals for the routes within the Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan. 

Currently, the route design is being worked on and traffic surveys and modelling is being undertaken. Phase 2 will be funded from Spelthorne's Surrey Infrastructure Feasibility Study Fund as agreed by Cabinet on the 19th May 2021 

P
age 62

https://democracy.spelthorne.gov.uk/documents/s46683/health%20and%20wellbeing%20strategy%20final%2020092022%20community%20wellbeing%20and%20housing%20committee.pdf
https://democracy.spelthorne.gov.uk/documents/s46683/health%20and%20wellbeing%20strategy%20final%2020092022%20community%20wellbeing%20and%20housing%20committee.pdf
https://democracy.spelthorne.gov.uk/documents/s46683/health%20and%20wellbeing%20strategy%20final%2020092022%20community%20wellbeing%20and%20housing%20committee.pdf
https://www.healthysurrey.org.uk/about/strategy/surrey-health-and-well-being-strategy-update-2022
https://www.healthysurrey.org.uk/about/strategy/surrey-health-and-well-being-strategy-update-2022
https://www.surreyi.gov.uk/2024/02/13/health-and-wellbeing-board-strategy-dashboards/
https://democracy.spelthorne.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=13645


Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  45 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

regularly and staff are 
encouraged to use them 
for site visits/attending 

meetings where possible.   
SCC offer the Better 

Points App to all residents, 
and this could be 
promoted to staff, 

Councillors and residents 
as part of this action 

(accrue points on the app 
towards vouchers or 
charity donations for 

choosing active travel, or 
public transport over car 

use).   
https://surrey.betterpoints.

app/ 

30 
Continue 

collaboration 
with Heathrow 
Airport Ltd to 

reduce 
emissions 

arising from the 
operation of 
Heathrow 
Airport. 

Policy 
Guidance 

and 
Developme
nt Control 

Regional 
Groups 

Co-
ordinating 
programm

es to 
develop 

Area wide 
Strategies 
to reduce 
emissions 

and 
improve 

air quality 

2024 2030 Spelthorne 
Borough 

Council, in 
collaboration 

with Heathrow 
Airport Limited, 
Heathrow Air  

Quality 
Working Group 

and CISHA  
Heathrow  

Area Transport  

Various No Various Various Implementat
ion 

Heathrow 
2.0 Goals 
for 2030: 
Reduce 

Nox 
emissions 
airside by 

18% 
compared 
to 2019 ; at 
least a 45% 

cut in 
ground 
carbon 

emissions. 

Achievement 
of target 

emissions 
reductions 

Heathrow is actively 
involved in improving 

public transport including 
capital measures to 

support rail connectivity, 
subsidised public transport 

for colleagues and other 
measures as set out in it's 
Surface Access Strategy.  
All conventional vehicles 

owned by Heathrow 
Airport Ltd are in transit to 

become carbon zero 
emission by 2030, with 

incentives and 
infrastructure to help other 

companies make the 
transition, including the 

use of HVO. 
Investment is being made 
into making buildings low 

carbon. 
Sustainable Travel Zone 
implemented in 2022 to 

encourage travel to 
Heathrow by public 

transport. 
Providing infrastructure to 

support zero emission 
cars and buses. 

Implementation planning 

Heathrow Airport Ltd 
does not own all the 

vehicles and buildings 
that operate at the 

airport, and as such it 
dose not have direct 

control over many of the 
emission sources 

associated with the 
airport operation. 

However, the company 
is committed to reducing 

carbon and NOx 
emissions (see 

Heathrow 2.0) and 
working with the 

surrounding Local 
Authorities on potential 

measures and 
information sharing.  
Heathrow Airport Ltd 

recognises that 
Spelthorne BC is one of 
the most impacted areas 
to emissions from airport 
freight movements due 

to the location of the 
cargo area but has no 
direct control over the 
freight operators and 

P
age 63



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024                  46 

Measu

re No. 

Measure Category Classifica

tion 

Estimate

d Year 

Measure 

to be 

Introduce

d 

Estimate

d / Actual 

Completi

on Year 

Organisations 

Involved 

Funding 

Source 

Defra 

AQ 

Gran

t 

Fund

ing 

Funding 

Status 

Estimated 

Cost of 

Measure 

Measure 

Status 

Target 

Reduction 

in Pollutant 

/ Emission 

from 

Measure 

Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / Potential 

Barriers to 

Implementation 

for airside ULEZ in 2025. 
Continuing to monitor air 

quality. 

therefore it seeks to 
influence improvements. 

31 
Support Traffic 
Management 

interventions to 
reduce road 

traffic emissions 
either through 

smoothing traffic 
flow or reducing 

vehicle use 

Traffic 
Manageme

nt  

Strategic 
highway 

improvem
ents 

2024 2029 SCC, National 
Highways,  

Various No Many 
schemes 
depende

nt on 
outcome

s of 
other 

processe
s 

various Implementat
ion 

Dependent 
on 

intervention 

Delivery of 
Interventions 

Improvements to 
signalling at Sunbury 
Cross Roundabout 

Capacity and cycle safety 
improvement not yet 

funded. 

Sunbury Cross: changes 
to the signals are the 

responsibility of National 
Highways and so will 

need to be approved by 
them.  The proposals will 
need to ensure that any 
changes to the operation 
of the off-slips will need 

to enhance the safety for 
vehicles exiting the 

M3/A316 as these are 
high speed roads.  
Staines bridge will 

depend on the review or 
update of Spelthorne 

Borough Council’s 
Staines Masterplan. 

P
age 64



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024        

         

 47 

Appendix A: Response to Consultation 

Table A.1 ‒ Summary of Responses to Consultation and Stakeholder Engagement on the AQAP 

Consultee Category Response 

To be completed following 

consultation 
  

P
age 65



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2024        

         

 48 

Appendix B: Reasons for Not Pursuing Action Plan Measures 

Table B.1 ‒ Action Plan Measures Not Pursued and the Reasons for that Decision 

Action category Action description 
Reason action is not being pursued 

(including Stakeholder views) 

Environmental Permits 

SBC carries out permitting role but judged not to need 

an action in this AQAP.  There is ongoing liaison with 

Environment Agency who permit larger processes 

such as the EcoPark. 

Not a large contributor to emissions in Spelthorne – 

proportionate measures included in the AQAP 

Freight and Delivery Management Freight consolidation  Not considered suitable measure for the AQMA 

P
age 66



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 

2024  49 

Glossary of Terms 

Abbreviation Description 

AQAP 

Air Quality Action Plan - A detailed description of measures, 

outcomes, achievement dates and implementation methods, 

showing how the local authority intends to achieve air quality limit 

values’ 

AQMA 

Air Quality Management Area – An area where air pollutant 

concentrations exceed / are likely to exceed the relevant air quality 

objectives. AQMAs are declared for specific pollutants and 

objectives 

AQS Air Quality Strategy 

ASR Air quality Annual Status Report 

CERC Cambridge Environmental Research Consultants  

COMEAP Committee On the Medical Effects of Air Pollution  

Defra Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

EU European Union 

EV Electric Vehicle 

HGV Heavy Good Vehicles 

HWS Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

JSNA Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

LAQM Local Air Quality Management 

LGV Light Goods Vehicle 

Page 67



Spelthorne Borough Council 

Spelthorne Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 

2024  50 

LTP Local Transport Plan 

NHS National Health Service  

NO2 Nitrogen Dioxide 

NOx Nitrogen Oxides 

PHOF Public Health Outcomes Framework  

PM10 
Airborne particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 10µm 

(micrometres or microns) or less 

PM2.5 
Airborne particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 2.5µm 

or less 

SBC Spelthorne Borough Council 

SCC Surrey County Council 

SPD Supplementary Planning Document  

ULEZ Ultra Low Emission Zone 

WHO World Health Organization 

  

Page 68



 

 

Equality Analysis 
 
 

Directorate:   Place, Protection and Prosperity 
 
Service Area:  Environmental Health 

 

Lead Officer:  
Claire Lucas, Principal Pollution Control Officer 
Tracey Willmott-French, Senior Environmental Health Manager 
 
Date completed: 2nd April 2024 
 

 
Service / Function / Policy / Procedure to be assessed: 
 
Air Quality Action Plan 

 

Is this:     
New / Proposed          
Existing/Review     
Changing               
 









Review date:  
 
2nd April 2024 

 
  

 

P
age 69



 

 

Part A – Initial Equality Analysis to determine if a full Equality Analysis is required. 
 
What are the aims and objectives/purpose of this service, function, policy or procedure? 
The Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) outlines the actions that Spelthorne Borough Council will take to improve air quality in Spelthorne Borough 
between 2024 and 2029. This action plan replaces the previous action plan which ran from 2005.  The AQAP is a statutory document which is part 
of the Local Air Quality Management process. 

 
Please indicate its relevance to any of the equality duties (below) by selecting Yes or No? 

 Yes No 

 
Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and harassment 

 + 

 
Advancing equality of opportunity 

+  

 
Fostering good community relations 

+  

 

If not relevant to any of the three equality duties and this is agreed by your Head of Service, the Equality Analysis is now 

complete - please send a copy to NAMED OFFICER.  If relevant, a Full Equality Analysis will need to be undertaken (PART B below).  

  

P
age 70



 

 

PART B: Full Equality Analysis 
 

Step 1 – Identifying outcomes and delivery mechanisms (in relation to what you are assessing) 
 
What outcomes are sought and for whom? 
 
 

The Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) outlines the actions that Spelthorne 
Borough Council will take to improve air quality in Spelthorne Borough 
between 2024 and 2029. The Equality and Diversity Impact 
Assessment aims to identify how the planned measures might impact 
different groups of people (with reference to the protected 
characteristics of age, disability, sex, gender reassignment, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, sexual orientation, religion or belief, marriage and 
civil partnership). 

Are there any associated policies, functions, services or 
procedures? 
 

This AQAP is formulated in accordance with the statutory obligations 
outlined in the Local Air Quality Management framework, which 
includes periodic reviews. Its primary objective is to assist Spelthorne in 
fulfilling its legal obligations as a local authority to pursue the UK air 
quality objectives. Additionally, it aims to comply with the requirements 
of the Local Air Quality Management (LAQM) statutory process. 

If partners (including external partners) are involved in 
delivering the service, who are they? 

Some measures in AQAP will be delivered by Surrey County Council.  
There are also measures which require input from Heathrow Airport Ltd. 
and National Highways. 

 
Step 2 – What does the information you have collected, or that you have available, tell you? 

 
What evidence/data already exists about the service and its users?  (in terms of its impact on the ‘equality strands’, i.e. race, disability, 
gender, gender identity, age, religion or belief, sexual orientation, maternity/pregnancy, marriage/civil partnership and other socially excluded 
communities or groups) and what does the data tell you? e.g. are there any significant gaps?  
 

As of the 2021 census, Spelthorne has a population of 103,000 and is the 14th most densely populated of the South East’s 64 Local Authority 
areas with 2,295 of residents per square kilometre.  
 
According to the Indices of Deprivation 2019, the most deprived borough in Surrey is Spelthorne. Spelthorne has the highest number of lone-
parent families and the highest level of child poverty in Surrey; it also has the highest under-18 conception rate in the county. That said, 
residents are largely healthy, with life expectancy for both males and females slightly above the national average. 

P
age 71

https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21053/Spelthorne-population-data
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21053/Spelthorne-population-data


 

 

 
Spelthorne has a low rate of unemployment: 1.4% of those economically active aged 16 to 64, compared to the South East (2.2%) and the UK 
as a whole (3.5%). Heathrow Airport is a significant local employer, with 8.3% of Spelthorne's working population employed there. Significantly, 
21.5% of those in work in Stanwell North are in low-level employment compared to an average of 11.6% in Surrey. Average wages are slightly 
above regional averages at £630 per week for full-time employeesError! Bookmark not defined..  

Whilst house prices remain well above the national average, most residents are owner-occupiers (73%), followed by private rented (13%) and 
social rented (12%)Error! Bookmark not defined..  
 
Gender / gender identity 
 
Census data from 2021 show that 50.8% of residents in Spelthorne are female, with the remaining 49.2% being male.  
 
A White Paper published in December 2018 (Help shape our future: the 2021 Census of population and housing in England and Wales) set out 
the ONS recommendation for what the census should contain and how it should operate. The White Paper recommended that the census in 
2021 include a question about gender identity, asking respondents whether their gender is the same as the sex they were registered as at 
birth. As a result, 93.98% of people aged 16 years and over in Spelthorne have the same gender identity as their sex registered at birth.  
  
The remaining population identify as follows: 
Gender identity   % 
People aged 16 years and over who have a gender identity different 
from their sex registered at birth but no specific identity given   0.19 

Identify as a trans woman   0.09 
Identify as a trans man   0.09 

Non-binary   0.02 

Another gender identity   0.02 

Prefer not to say  5.62 

 
 
Age 
 
Spelthorne has a slightly lower population of under-30s (33%) compared to the rest of the country (36%), and a slightly higher population of 30-
69 year olds (53%) compared with the national average of (51%), The number of 70+ is 14%, which is broadly in line with the rest of the nation. 
Ethnicity 
 

P
age 72

https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21053/Spelthorne-population-data
https://www.ons.gov.uk/datasets/RM121/editions/2021/versions/1#get-data
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/cbp-8531/
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/data-tools-and-resources/2021-census-results/#heading-1
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/bulletins/populationandhouseholdestimatesenglandandwales/census2021


 

 

The ethnic make-up of Spelthorne is largely in line with the rest of England and Wales, predominantly residents are from a white ethnic 
background. However, there are slightly more Asian people and those with a mixed ethnic background but fewer people from a black ethnic 
group compared to the national average. 
 
              Spelthorne   England and Wales 

Ethnic group   Number %   % 

Asian   13,146 12.8%  9.6% 

Black   2,548 2.5%  4.2% 

Mixed ethnicities    3,763 3.7%  3.0% 

White   81,000 78.7%  81.0% 

Other   2,503 2.4%  2.1% 

 
 
Disability 
 
Spelthorne has a slightly lower percentage of residents with a disability compared to the rest of England and Wales.  
 
         Spelthorne  England and Wales 

Disability   %   % 

Disabled under the Equality Act   14.2%  17.7% 

Not disabled under the Equality Act   85.8%  82.3% 

 
As of October 2023, there were around 3,817 Personal Independence Payments (PIP) claimants in Spelthorne. Within Spelthorne, psychiatric 
disorders were the most common reason for claiming PIP. They accounted for 40% of awards, compared to 38.0% in Great Britain. ‘Psychiatric 
disorders’ include anxiety and depression, learning disabilities and autism. The second most common reason for awards was musculoskeletal 
disease (general), which accounted for 15% of awards within the constituency and 20.0% in Great Britain. Musculoskeletal disease (general) 
includes osteoarthritis, inflammatory arthritis and chronic pain syndromes. 
 
Religion 
 
Residents of Spelthorne predominately identify themselves as either Christian or having no religion. There is a smaller Muslim population 
compared with the national average, but a larger Hindu and Sikh population. 
 
              Spelthorne   England and Wales 

Religion   Number %   % 

Christian   52,432 50.9%  46.2% 

P
age 73

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/ethnicity/bulletins/ethnicgroupenglandandwales/census2021#:~:text=%22Black%2C%20Black%20British%2C%20Caribbean,was%202.2%25%20(1.2%20million)
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21053/Spelthorne-population-data
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/constituency-data-personal-independence-payment-2/
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/personal-independence-payment-statistics-to-january-2024/personal-independence-payment-official-statistics-to-january-2024#:~:text=Latest%20quarterly%20figures%20to%20January,21%2C000%20clearances%20for%20DLA%20reassessments
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21053/Spelthorne-population-data


 

 

Muslim  4,146 4.0%  6.5% 

Hindu  4,372 4.2%  1.7% 

Buddhist  703 0.7%  0.5% 

Jewish  174 0.2%  0.5% 

Sikh  2,612 2.5%  0.9% 

Other  520 0.5%  0.6% 

No religion  32,112 31.2%  50.8% 

Not stated  5,884 5.7%  6.0% 

 
 
Sexual orientation 
 
The sexual orientation of Spelthorne residents is largely in line with the rest of England and Wales.  
              Spelthorne   England and Wales 

Sexual orientation   Number %   % 
Straight or 
Heterosexual  75,505 

 
90.57%  89.37% 

  Gay or Lesbian  1,088 1.31%  1.54% 

Bisexual  704 0.84%  1.28% 

Pansexual  123 0.15%  0.23% 

Asexual  25 0.03%  0.06% 

Queer  6 0.01%  0.03% 
All Other Sexual 
Orientations  7 0.01%  

 
0.02% 

Not answered     5,904 7.08%  7.47%  

 
 
Marriage / Civil Partnership 
 
More people in Spelthorne are married compared to the rest of England and Wales, and fewer people identify as single: 
 
Status        Spelthorne  England and Wales 

All usual residents aged 16+   83,345  48,561,360 

Single (never married or never 
registered a same-sex civil 
partnership)  34.2%  37.9% 

Married  48.5%  44.6% 

P
age 74

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexuality#:~:text=Sexual%20orientation%2C%20England%20and%20Wales%3A%20Census%202021&text=In%20total%2C%2044.9%20million%20people,identified%20as%20straight%20or%20heterosexual
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/marriagecohabitationandcivilpartnerships/datasets/legalpartnershipstatusbyagesexandlocalauthoritycensus2021


 

 

Separated (but still legally married 
or in a same-sex civil partnership)  2.2%  2.2% 

Divorced or formerly in a same-
sex civil partnership which is now 
legally dissolved  8.9%  9.1% 

Widowed or surviving partner from 
a same-sex civil partnership  6.2%  6.1% 

 
 
Pregnancy / Maternity 
 
In 2022, the number of live births in Spelthorne was 1,110, with a total fertility rate of 1.60 (an average number of live children that are born to 
a woman throughout her childbearing lifespan) which is higher than in England and Wales. 
 
Status        Spelthorne  England and Wales 

Number of births   1,110  605,342 

Total fertility rate  1.60  1.49 

     

The percentage of households including a couple with dependent children in Spelthorne increased from 21.4% in 2011 to 21.8% in 2021. 
During the same period, the percentage fell from 21.0% to 20.6% in the region (South East). 
 
 
Income 
 
Although income is not a protected characteristic, some measures in the AQAP may have a differential impact based on socio-economic 
status, and in turn, different household demographics may be more or less represented in different income bands. As such, we explore here 
trends in income across the protected characteristics, as context for the subsequent analysis around different AQAP measures. 
 
Income, fuel poverty, and ethnicity. Ethnic minorities tend to have lower average incomes than white British people. In England and Wales, 
such BAME ethnicities as Bangladeshi, Pakistani, African, and other Black, Caribbean usually earn less than a White British Employee (2022).  
 
Data also show that Black households (54%) were most likely out of all ethnic groups to have a weekly income of less than £600 in 2020 in the 
UK. Additionally, Bangladeshi, Pakistani, Black and other Asian households are more likely to be in the bottom 2 income quintiles than white 
groups. Households with a Bangladeshi head are 18 times less likely to be in the top quintile of total wealth (wealth above £865,400) than 
those with a White British head, for households with a Black African head the likelihood is nine times less (data for 2016-2018). 44% of Black 
African and Other Asian households have financial debts higher than their financial assets, which is twice more likely for them than for White 

P
age 75

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/livebirths/datasets/birthsummarytables
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E07000213/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/earningsandworkinghours/articles/ethnicitypaygapsingreatbritain/2012to2022#:~:text=The%20Mixed%20or%20Multiple%20ethnic,ethnic%20employees%20in%20Figure%201
https://www.ethnicity-facts-figures.service.gov.uk/work-pay-and-benefits/pay-and-income/household-income/latest/
https://www.ethnicity-facts-figures.service.gov.uk/work-pay-and-benefits/pay-and-income/income-distribution/latest/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/personalandhouseholdfinances/incomeandwealth/articles/householdwealthbyethnicitygreatbritain/april2016tomarch2018


 

 

British households. Some BAME groups participate in private pension schemes less, incl. Bangladeshi (48%), Chinese (57%), and Black 
African (59%) headed households. The level of participation among Indian and White British ethnic groups is 83% and 82% for respectively. 
 
There is also evidence that ethnic minority households (20% of all households) are more likely to be in fuel poverty than white households 
(13%) as of 2019, although tend to have a lower average fuel poverty gap (the reduction in fuel costs needed for a household to not be in fuel 
poverty). 
 
Income and disability. There is a disability pay gap in the UK, measured as the gap between median pay for disabled employees and non-
disabled employees. It was 13.8% in 2021 and has been increasing since 2014 (11.7%). 
 
Social housing, ethnicity, disability, and age. While 17% of all residents live in social rented housing in England and Wales, this share is 
higher for certain ethnic groups: Other Black (48%), African (44%), Gypsy or Irish Traveller (44%), Caribbean (41%), White and Black 
Caribbean (39%), Bangladeshi (34%), White and Black African (32%), Arab (29%) (2021). Furthermore, disabled people are more likely to live 
in social housing – in 2021 one quarter of disabled people aged 16 to 64 years occupied such property (24.9%) compared to 7.9% of non-
disabled people aged 16 to 64 years in the UK. Finally, older people (aged 65+) are more likely to live in social housing (16%) than in private 
rented property (6%). 

 
Has there been any consultation with, or input from, customers / service users or other stakeholders?  If so, with whom, how were they 
consulted and what did they say?  If you haven’t consulted yet and are intending to do so, please list which specific groups or communities you 
are going to consult with and when. 
 

This AQAP was prepared with the support and agreement of the following departments and wider stakeholders: Strategic Planning (Spelthorne 
Borough Council, or SBC), Climate Change and Sustainability (SBC), Transport (SCC), Environmental Health (SBC), Neighbourhood services 
/ fleet (SBC), Leisure (health and wellbeing and active travel) (SBC), Heathrow Airport Ltd; and National Highways. Spelthorne Council will 
launch a public consultation once the draft document has been agreed and will make necessary amendments to the Plan following consultation 
(which will also include the Defra appraisal process). 

 
Are there any complaints, compliments, satisfaction surveys or customer feedback that could help inform this assessment?  If yes, what 
do these tell you? 
 

To be added after the public consultation. 

 
Step 3 – Identifying the negative impact. 

 

P
age 76

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/966509/Annual_Fuel_Poverty_Statistics_LILEE_Report_2021__2019_data_.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/disability/articles/disabilitypaygapsintheuk/2021
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/ethnicity/articles/ethnicgroupdifferencesinhealthemploymenteducationandhousingshowninenglandandwalescensus2021/2023-03-15
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/disability/datasets/disabilityandhousinguk
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-housing-survey-2021-to-2022-social-rented-sector/english-housing-survey-2021-to-2022-social-rented-sector


 

 

a. Is there any negative impact on individuals or groups in the community? 
 

Barriers:  
 
What are the potential or known barriers/impacts for the different ‘equality strands’ set out below? Consider: 
 

 Where you provide your service, e.g. the facilities/premises;  

 Who provides it, e.g. are staff trained and representative of the local population/users? 

 How it is provided, e.g. do people come to you or do you go to them? Do any rules or requirements prevent certain people accessing 
the service? 

 When it is provided, e.g. opening hours? 

 What is provided, e.g. does the service meet everyone’s needs? How do you know? 
 

* Some barriers are justified, e.g. for health or safety reasons, or might actually be designed to promote equality, e.g. single sex 
swimming/exercise sessions, or cannot be removed without excessive cost. If you believe any of the barriers identified to be justified then 
please indicate which they are and why. 
 
Solutions:  
 
What can be done to minimize or remove these barriers to make sure everyone has equal access to the service or to reduce adverse impact? 
Consider: 
 

 Other arrangements that can be made to ensure people’s diverse needs are met; 

 How your actions might help to promote good relations between communities; 

 How you might prevent any unintentional future discrimination. 
 
 

AQAP measure Positive Impacts on equality and diversity 
identified 1 

Solutions 
(ways in which you could mitigate the impact) 

                                            
1 Age (including children, young people and older people), Disability (including carers), Gender (men and women), Race (including Gypsies & Travellers and Asylum Seekers), Religion or 
belief (including people of no religion or belief), Gender Reassignment (those that are going through transition: male to female or female to male), Pregnancy and Maternity, Sexual 
Orientation (including gay, lesbian, bisexual and heterosexual). 
 

P
age 77



 

 

All measures target air pollution 
reduction 

Scientific evidence shows that poor air quality 
poses risks for pregnant women and their babies, 
as it can impair normal foetus development.  
 
Older people are also at greater risk, as poor air 
quality may increase the susceptibility to stroke, 
dementia, cancer, various chronic conditions such 
as respiratory and cardiovascular diseases, and 
premature mortality. 
 
For children poor air quality can lead to 
developing lifelong, chronic conditions, such as 
poorly developed lungs, asthma, high blood 
pressure, inattention and hyperactivity, and 
mental illness. 
 
People with existing health conditions (which are 
often registered as having a disability) are also 
more susceptible to the harmful effects of air 
pollution.  
 
All measures included in the updated AQAP for 
Spelthorne aim to reduce the emission of, or 
exposure to, harmful air pollution. In doing so, the 
AQAP will have disproportionately higher positive 
effects for these groups than for others due to 
their inherent higher vulnerability to poor air 
quality. 
 
In the UK, and England in particular, deprived 
groups (determined largely based on income and 
employment factors) also tend to live in locations 
which are of higher pollutant concentrations. 
While there are no data for Spelthorne, a recent 
report for London (2023) confirms this tendency. 

NA 

P
age 78

https://www.london.gov.uk/New%20review%20shows%20harmful%20health%20impacts%20of%20pollution%20before%20birth%20through%20to%20old%20age
https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/assets/documents/reports/cat09/0701110944_AQinequalitiesFNL_AEAT_0506.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/programmes-strategies/environment-and-climate-change/environment-and-climate-change-publications/air-pollution-and-inequalities-london-update-2023


 

 

In London, areas with the lowest NO2 and PM2.5 
concentrations have a disproportionately white 
population. Deprived groups will, overall, benefit 
more from air quality improvement than non-
deprived ones. 

Measure 18 on the promotion of 
alternative travel.  

Under the measure, older people, disabled 
people, Ukrainian refugees, and young people 
under 20 are eligible for free bus passes. In this 
way, we aim to not only promote low-carbon 
transport to decrease negative impacts on climate 
and air quality but also do it inclusively. This is 
also an important measure in the overall package 
of measures which make up the AQAP, as it 
balances other measures which may be less 
accessible to particular groups (for example 
cycling measures which may not be feasible for 
people with disabilities). 

NA 

Under measure 19 Spelthorne plans to 
work with Knowle Green Estates and 
suppliers to promote retrofit, insulation, 
energy efficiency and adaptation 
measures in housing. The existing 
Surrey scheme Home Upgrade Grant 
provides financing to low-income or 
stretched-income households with 
hard-to-heat properties.  

This measure is targeted at the Borough’s social 
housing stock. A higher proportion of residents of 
social housing fall into one or more of the 
protected characteristics, relative to the 
population as a whole (see Step 2 for context). 
Those who need support most of all, such as low-
income households, with a higher proportion of 
older people, people with disabilities, and 
representatives of BAME communities, will have 
access to the benefits provided by the installation 
of energy efficiency measures. 

NA 

AQAP measure Barriers for/Negative Impacts on equality 
themes identified 

 

Solutions 
(ways in which you could mitigate the impact) 

Measure 6: Promote access to grant 
funding for renewable energy 
installations for residents including 
Solar Together (source: Surrey County 

1. Affordability. The Solar Together scheme is 
currently closed to new applications. The scheme 
does not offer grant funding, it is an able-to-pay 
scheme self-funded by households. Marketing of 

1. It is important to ensure that people with low 
income (among which people with disabilities and 
BAME communities are more greatly represented 
(see Step 2 for context)) have equal access to 

P
age 79

https://www.actionsurrey.org/funding/HUG2


 

 

Council Greener Futures Delivery 
Plan).  
 
Measures on energy efficiency for 
residential buildings (7, 19).  
 

the scheme was multi-channel (mail-outs, social 
media and digital marketing, newspaper adverts, 
posters, etc.) and targeted towards households 
identified as being more able to pay. Future 
funding rounds are currently being considered.  
Should the scheme re-open and provided grant 
funding is not available, there is a risk the scheme 
will proportionately benefit higher-income 
households. At the same time, a greater 
proportion of people with disabilities and BAME 
communities fall within lower income groups (see 
Step 2 for context), and hence these people may 
be less able to purchase renewable energy 
system (RES) installations without grant support, 
and hence less able to capture the benefits of 
reduced energy bills. 
 
Existing research indicates that unless social 
inequalities are addressed at the early stages, 
RES projects alone will not achieve equity. 
Evaluation studies have found that upfront capital 
support, i.e. grants, was the most cost-effective 
option, benefitting those in fuel poverty, while it is 
not always a preferred form of support. 
 
2. Other barriers. Another issue relates to 
achieving physical access to homes, in particular 
for older people or those with disabilities. These 
groups may feel more vulnerable and be less 
willing to have workers come into their homes, 
and hence may be less likely to apply for RES 
and energy efficiency schemes.  
 
Some households in fuel poverty are harder to 
reach than others due to difficulties in using 

the benefits of such schemes. As Spelthorne 
Borough Council is not the authority designing 
the measure, its ability to influence the design of 
the Solar Together scheme is limited. However, 
we will consider these risks in our programs, and 
monitor and evaluate a recipient profile and any 
access issues under the ongoing schemes (e.g. 
under measure 19). It is worth noting that the 
Solar Together scheme reduces energy prices for 
participants and overall has net positive 
economic effects for the population. The scheme 
does not make pricing conditions for lower-
income people worse. Furthermore, the Solar 
Together measures sit alongside other measures 
which may be more accessible or even targeted 
towards more vulnerable households (e.g. 
Measure 7). 
 
 
2. According to Surrey Council, installers would 
make reasonable adjustments and 
considerations when working at a property and 
installing to accommodate any disability needs. 
There are processes in place around recognising 
and helping vulnerable customers.   
 
Surrey County Council will support the groups 
that feel more vulnerable (e.g. free phone advice 
helpline, and energy advice support at local 
offices). 
 
Forms of communication on available 
opportunities should meet the needs of people 
with disabilities and those who are not 
comfortable using a computer. Spelthorne 

P
age 80

https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2214629620303492
https://www.nea.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Heat-Decarbonisation-Report-2017.pdf


 

 

computers, digital exclusion, or disabilities. As a 
result, they will be less represented among the 
participants in energy and energy efficiency 
schemes. Digital exclusion is more typical for 
older people. 

Council will ensure that the ways of 
communication on existing and future programs 
meet the needs of those groups. 

Measure 10: Emissions-based parking 
tariffs (considered but not at the 
development stage). 

If implementing a tariff approach based on vehicle 
emissions, lower-income groups who are more 
likely to drive older, cheaper and more polluting 
cars will have to pay more. As noted above, 
proportionately more households with protected 
characteristics fall into lower income categories, 
and hence will be disproportionately affected (see 
Step 2 for context). 
 
Additionally, this will penalize those who rely on 
the use of private transport more and have fewer 
alternative options, such as pregnant women, 
people with disabilities or people with young 
children. 

When designing this measure, we will consider 
appropriate mitigation actions. For example, one 
option could be where the owners of polluting 
cars will pay the same parking tariffs in 
Spelthorne as currently, but owners of cleaner 
cars will pay a discounted tariff (as it currently 
works in Woking, Surrey). This way, we will 
create an incentive rather than a penalty. 
 
It is worth noting that this measure will sit 
alongside other AQAP measures, including 
measures to incentivise the elderly to use public 
transport by providing free bus passes. 
Furthermore, public transport in Spelthorne is 
equipped for the needs of people with disabilities. 
 
To mitigate negative impacts on pregnant women 
and people with young children, one option may 
be to consider not applying variation in charges 
around facilities those groups need to use – e.g. 
local doctors or hospitals. This will be considered 
if / when this measure moves forward to detailed 
consideration. 

Measure 12 is encouraging taxi 
companies and drivers to invest in 
electric fleets. With support from the 
Defra Air Quality Fund, Spelthorne 
authorities will subsidise the purchase 
of EVs by drivers and companies. In 
total, we expect 40 vehicles to be 

EVs are generally newer and more expensive, 
therefore less affordable for lower-income groups. 
The salary range for taxi drivers in the UK is 
£14,000-30,000 depending on experience. 
Hence, less experienced drivers are more likely to 
be in the low-income category. Importantly, Asian 
or Asian British were the largest ethnic group of 

The policy does not ban or penalize other types 
of cars. The purchase of EVs with grant support 
is optional, hence in theory only those who can 
afford it will take it up, while drivers of non-EVs 
will not be made worse off.  
 

P
age 81

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/6024fcabd3bf7f031e1bdc80/CCS207_CCS0221018682-001_CP_391_Sustainable_Warmth_Print.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/heat-and-buildings-strategy/equality-impact-assessment-for-the-heat-and-buildings-strategy
https://nationalcareers.service.gov.uk/job-profiles/taxi-driver
https://www.ethnicity-facts-figures.service.gov.uk/work-pay-and-benefits/pay-and-income/low-income/latest/#:~:text=Households%20are%20in%20low%20income,January%202020%20to%20December%202021


 

 

procured and divided between 
Spelthorne, Guildford, Waverley, 
Epsom and Ewell, Reigate and 
Banstead, Elmbridge and Woking. 
Drivers or companies will cover part of 
the cost over the subsidy period, and 
when the subsidy ends can choose to 
cover all costs or return the vehicle. 
 

taxi and cab drivers, having grown from 29% in 
2010 to 42% in 2022 (England). 
 
Any measure which encourages EV uptake has 
the potential to place a high cost on a low-income 
group with a high representation of BAME 
communities. While operating costs are often 
lower for EVs than for petrol or diesel cars, with 
an average saving of £700 a year, there still is an 
issue of upfront costs of purchasing an EV. 

Grants will only be provided for a purchase of 4-5 
cars in Spelthorne, which is also a small change 
to the fleet. 
 
Furthermore, it should be noted that Spelthorne 
Borough Council amended the taxi and private 
hire vehicle licencing policy to accommodate fully 
electric vehicles in 2022 which had not been 
allowed before.  
 
At this stage, no additional mitigation action is 
needed, however, if we develop other measures 
that may penalise taxi drivers for more polluting 
cars in the future, we will consider how they may 
impact low-income groups, incl. representatives 
of BAME communities. 

Measures 13 and 15 plan to raise 
awareness of poor air quality, 
associated health implications, and 
activities that affect air quality (idling 
and solid fuel burning). 

It is more difficult to reach certain groups due to 
digital exclusion that is more typical for them, e.g. 
older people. As a result, their awareness of air 
quality, its health effects and harmful activities 
may be less than other groups. 

Spelthorne Borough Council used different ways 
to promote the schemes. Campaign materials are 
available offline, as Spelthorne Borough Council 
provides the Bulletin magazine in print to 
residents and community notice boards. 

Several measures (16 and 17) aim to 
change transport infrastructure – in 
particular, improvements of walking 
and cycling infrastructure, and junction 
improvements to increase capacity and 
improve road layouts linked to new 
developments.  
 
 
 

As infrastructure improves for certain groups, e.g. 
cyclists or drivers, this may not be usable for 
people with disabilities, or older people, 
potentially reducing road space for private 
vehicles and therefore making their journey 
longer, increasing the risk of severance from key 
amenities.  
 
A specific risk associated with infrastructure 
changes is the potential use of raised planters as 
a part of the Liveable Neighbourhoods 
programme, which may prevent access by 
emergency services to particular places, which 
may have a greater impact on several protected 

When planning infrastructure changes, 
Spelthorne authorities will follow “Healthy Streets 
for Surrey” requirements and guidance, 
requirements of the Design Manual for Roads 
and Bridges, and “Inclusive Mobility: A Guide to 
Best Practice on Access to Pedestrian and 
Transport Infrastructure”. This will ensure that 
severance issues are considered for persons with 
protected characteristics and do not deteriorate.  
 
There was an Equality impact assessment for the 
Surrey Transport Plan identifying and addressing 
the impacts on protected characteristics. We 
expect the design feasibility study for the Local 

P
age 82

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-statistics-england-2022/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-statistics-england-2022
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/electric-vehicles-costs-charging-and-infrastructure/electric-vehicles-costs-charging-and-infrastructure
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/heat-and-buildings-strategy/equality-impact-assessment-for-the-heat-and-buildings-strategy
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/63a32a8d8fa8f539198d9bf3/TAG_Unit_A4.1_-_Social-impact-appraisal_Nov_2022_Accessible_v1.0.pdf.pdf
https://healthystreets.surreycc.gov.uk/requirements-and-guidance
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/61d32bb7d3bf7f1f72b5ffd2/inclusive-mobility-a-guide-to-best-practice-on-access-to-pedestrian-and-transport-infrastructure.pdf


 

 

characteristics who rely on these services more 
heavily. 
 
 

Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Plan will 
include an Equality impact assessment for each 
route. 
 
Additionally, public consultation is ongoing from 
4th March to 5th April 2024 on the West Sunbury 
zone (Cedar Way, Mill Farm Avenue and Percy 
Bryant Road) within which we identified the need 
for improvements. We will consider any 
comments made regarding potential effects for 
people with disabilities.  

Measures 18, 24, 25, 26, 27 and 28 
seek to promote active travel, such as 
walking and cycling, through regular 
guided cycle rides, route suggestions 
for independent rides, and subsidised 
cycle training at schools. 

Lower-income groups, within which a greater 
proportion of persons with protected 
characteristics may fall (see Step 2 for context), 
may be less able to engage in cycling activities 
due to the upfront costs involved or due to other 
factors such as health issues or disabilities.  
 
In terms of awareness, it is more difficult to reach 
certain groups due to digital exclusion that is 
more typical for them, e.g. older peopleError! 

Bookmark not defined.. As a result, their participation in 
such measures may be lower.  
 
Several measures seek to encourage greater 
active travel (e.g. cycling/walking), which certain 
groups will face a greater challenge to take up 
due to physical or mental limitations. 

There is a volunteer initiative “Talking Tree” that 
upcycles bikes and gives them to new owners, as 
well as organises repair sessions. While it is not 
run by Spelthorne authorities, it can help low-
income groups obtain a bike. 
 
Spelthorne Borough Council used different ways 
to promote the schemes. The Borough Bulletin 
publication is available online and goes out in 
hard copy to all households. The webpage gives 
details of how to get accessible format copies by 
telephone from the Communications team.  
 
Surrey County Council have an arrangement via 
the Community Recycling Centre re-use shop to 
sell reconditioned bicycles at a lower cost to 
residents than a new bicycle. Surrey County 
Council are also considering the feasibility of 
short-term bike hire schemes.  
 
The measures also aim to encourage ‘wheeling’ 
generally, to ensure greater inclusivity. Again, 
these measures sit alongside other measures in 
the Plan which aim to promote greener 

P
age 83

https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/21674/West-Sunbury-improvements
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/bulletin


 

 

transportation for all groups (e.g. lower bus 
fares).  

 
 

Step 4 – Changes or mitigating actions proposed or adopted 
 
Having undertaken the assessment are there any changes necessary to the existing service, policy, function or procedure?  What 
changes or mitigating actions are proposed? 
 

The above assessment demonstrates that none of the AQAP policies currently in effect will affect the groups assessed. There are risks that 
some future measures have the potential to have negative impacts (e.g. emissions based parking), and we plan to consider them when 
developing those measures. That said, in many cases mitigation actions have already been taken and when the Plan is considered as a whole, 
some measures act as mitigation measures for others. Two policies have a direct positive benefit on equality themes, and air quality 
improvement in general will have larger positive effects for older people, pregnant women and their babies, and young children than the wider 
population. All other impacts and benefits have been identified as neutral.  

 

Step 5 – Monitoring 

 
How are you going to monitor the existing service, function, policy or procedure? 
 

Implementation of AQAP and its impacts on equality and diversity of population will be a part of the annual Authority monitoring report that is 
produced annually and sets out Spelthorne Borough Council's progress on plan preparation and assesses the effectiveness of the policies and 
objectives on air quality. 
 
Local air quality monitoring results and an annual update on measures within the Air Quality Action Plan will be provided within the Councils 
Annual Status Report which Spelthorne Borough Council is required to submit to Defra as part of the Local Air Quality Management regime. 
 
Information on local air quality for residents who are vulnerable to episodes of poor air quality will continue to be provided via an alert service. 
At the time of writing this is the Air Alert service.  

 

Part C – Action Plan 
 

P
age 84

https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/17654/Authority-Monitoring-Report
https://airalert.info/Surrey/Default.aspx


 

 

Barrier/s or improvement/s 
identified 

Action Required Lead Officer Timescale 

Measures on energy efficiency for 
residential buildings (7, 19). 
Potential issues around access to 
home, for older people or those 
with disabilities. Digital exclusion 
issues.  

Surrey County Council will support the 
groups that feel more vulnerable (e.g. 
free phone advice helpline, and energy 
advice support at local offices). 
 
Spelthorne Council will ensure that the 
ways of communication on existing 
programs meet the needs of people with 
disabilities or those who face digital 
exclusion. We will monitor the delivery 
of the existing schemes in terms of 
possible equality and diversity issues. 

Lead - Surrey County Council 
 
Support from Spelthorne 
Borough Council: 
 
Sustainability and Climate 
Change Officers 
 
Assets Team Officers 
 
Building Control Officers 
 
Environmental Health 
Officers regarding landlord 
and agency owned properties 
with poor EPC 
characteristics, that may be 
subject to enforcement and in 
providing information on 
relevant schemes to improve 
the condition of residents’ 
properties.   

By the end of the Air Quality 
Action Plan period - 2029 

Measure 10: Emissions-based 
parking tariffs (being considered 
but not at the development stage). 
There is a risk that low-income 
groups who are more likely to have 
cheaper and more polluting cars 
will have to pay more. Additionally, 
this will penalise those who rely on 
the use of private transport more 
and have fewer options, such as 

When considering the feasibility of this 
measure, we will consider the option 
under which owners of polluting cars will 
pay the same parking tariffs in 
Spelthorne as before, and owners of 
cleaner cars will pay a discounted tariff. 
To mitigate negative impacts on 
pregnant women and people with young 
children, it might not apply around 
facilities those groups need to use – e.g. 

Lead - Neighbourhood 
Services- Parking Services 
Manager 
 
Support from: 
 
Economics Officers 
 
Sustainability and Climate 
Change Officers 

By the end of the Air Quality 
Action Plan period - 2029 

P
age 85



 

 

pregnant women, or people with 
young children. 

local doctors or hospitals. This will be 
considered if / when this measure 
moves forward to detailed 
consideration. 

 
Environmental Health 
Pollution Control Officers.  

 
Equality Analysis approved by: 

Group Head: 
 
 

Date: 

 
 

P
age 86


	Agenda
	3 Draft Air Quality Action Plan
	Appendix A Draft Air Quality Action Plan_post MAT
	Appendix B Equality and Diversity Impact Assessment for the Air Quality Action Plan (1)


